COLLECTIVE AGREEMENT

BETWEEN



THE UNIVERSITY OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND

- A N D -



LOCAL UNION NO. 1870

CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES

EXPIRES APRIL 30, 2016

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT	1
DEFINITIONS	
ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION AND SCOPE OF AGREEMENT	3
ARTICLE 2 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	3
ARTICLE 3 - NO DISCRIMINATION	4
ARTICLE 4 - BARGAINING UNIT SECURITY AND CHECK-OFF	4
ARTICLE 5 - NON-BARGAINING UNIT EMPLOYMENT	6
ARTICLE 6 - REPRESENTATION AND BARGAINING COMMITTEE	6
ARTICLE 7 - LABOUR MANAGEMENT	6
ARTICLE 8 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	
ARTICLE 9 - ARBITRATION	
ARTICLE 10 - HOURS OF WORK	9
ARTICLE 11 - OVERTIME	
ARTICLE 12 - PAYMENT OF WAGES AND ALLOWANCES	12
ARTICLE 13 - ATTENDANCE AT WORK	13
ARTICLE 14 - LOST TIME	14
ARTICLE 15 - REST PERIODS	
ARTICLE 16 - PAID HOLIDAYS	15
ARTICLE 17 - VACATIONS	16
ARTICLE 18 - SICK LEAVE	18
ARTICLE 19 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE	
ARTICLE 20 - SENIORITY	
ARTICLE 21 - LAY OFF AND RECALL	
ARTICLE 22 - PROBATION:	
ARTICLE 23 - PROMOTIONS AND STAFF CHANGES	28
ARTICLE 24 - INSURANCE	34
ARTICLE 25 - SAFETY AND HEALTH	
ARTICLE 26 - GENERAL CONDITIONS	
ARTICLE 27 - DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE	
ARTICLE 28 - RETIREMENT AND PAY	
ARTICLE 29 - SEVERANCE ALLOWANCE	37
ARTICLE 30 - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS	37
ARTICLE 31 - JOB SECURITY	
ARTICLE 32 - RESOLUTIONS AND REPORTS OF THE BOARD	38
ARTICLE 33 - MATERNITY/PARENTAL/PATERNITY LEAVE	
ARTICLE 34 - REPRESENTATIVE OF THE CANADIAN UNION	
ARTICLE 35 - WORKERS COMPENSATION	
ARTICLE 36 - DEFERRED SALARY LEAVE PLAN	42
ARTICLE 37 - TERM OF AGREEMENT	44
ARTICLE 38 - ANNIVERSARY DATE	45

APPENDICES

Appendix A – Salary Schedule

Appendix B – Red Circled Employees, Classification Study

Appendix C – UPEI Policy on AIDS

Appendix D – Exclusions

Appendix E – Replacement and Temporary (Term) Employees

Appendix F – Classification and Salary Range Schedule

Memorandum of Understanding - Vacation and Overtime

Memorandum of Agreement – Establishment of Health Care Trust, Minus Appendices

Letter of Understanding – Intellectual Property

Letter of Understanding – Out of Scale Market Adjustments

Letter of Understanding – Job Evaluation, Article 23

Letter of Agreement – Joint Committee Study - Leave Exhaustion

Memorandum of Agreement – Pension Enhancements

Memorandum of Agreement – Excluded Employees

This Agreement made and entered into this	day of, 2015.		
BETWEEN:			
The University of Prince Edward Island, hereinafter called "The Employer";			
AND:	PARTY OF THE I	FIRST PART,	
The Canadian Union of Dublic Employees, Los	al Union 1970 harrinafter called "7	The Union".	

The Canadian Union of Public Employees, Local Union 1870, hereinafter called "The Union";

PARTY OF THE SECOND PART.

PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

The purpose of this Agreement shall be to establish working conditions, hours of work, rates of pay and/or wages, of the employees of the University of Prince Edward Island who are listed under Article 1.01, 1.02 and 1.03 and to promote cooperation between these employees and the University and to allow the efficient operation of these employees in carrying out the duties detailed by the University Administration.

DEFINITIONS

In this Agreement:

- a) "Casual employees" are defined as those persons employed for an undefined period of time, not to exceed the equivalent of four (4) months of continuous full-time work in any one year, on an irregular or unscheduled basis, to perform work of a non-continuing nature or to assist with temporary increases in workloads.
- b) "Department Head" means the person who has overall responsibility for the supervision and management of the department.
- c) "Employee" means a member of the bargaining unit.
- d) "Employer" means the University of Prince Edward Island.
- e) "Grant employees" are those persons appointed to positions where the funding for the position is based on a "grant" to a designated faculty member, or researcher, rather than for a specific research contract.
- f) "Permanent employee" means a person who is employed on a permanent basis and who has successfully completed their probationary period.

- g) "Sessional employees" are those employees who are employed on a full-time basis for the normal academic year of nine (9) or ten (10) months duration.
- h) "Temporary (term) employees" are defined as those persons appointed to positions where the major funding for the position is from an independent, or separate source; the funding is not of a continuing nature; the position is for a fixed-term; the position is conditional upon some future event; or the position became vacant and will not be refilled as a permanent position.
- i) "Replacement employees" are those persons hired to replace bargaining unit members who are absent from their regular duties in the workplace on authorized leaves, other work assignments, training or similar absences.
- j) "University" means the University of Prince Edward Island.
- k) For the purpose of this Collective Agreement, "common-law spouse" shall include same gender partners.
- 1) "Classification" means a group of titles captured by one of the three grouping silos (MTS; P/A or ADS) under Appendix "F".

ARTICLE 1 - RECOGNITION AND SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

- 1.01 The Employer recognizes the Canadian Union of Public Employees, Local 1870 as the sole Collective Bargaining Agent for all of its employees engaged in work in the classifications listed on the Certification Order 11-75 issued by the Prince Edward Island Labour Relations Board on the 22nd day of July, 1975, save and except the exclusions as listed on Appendix "A" of the Certification Order, and casual employees.
- 1.02 In addition, as a result of re-classification, of positions and expansion to the workforce, the Employer voluntarily recognizes the Canadian Union of Public Employees, Local 1870 as the sole Collective Bargaining Agent for all of its employees engaged in work in the classifications listed on Appendix "F" attached to and forming part of its Collective Agreement save and except the exclusions as listed on Appendix "A" of the Certification Order, Appendix "D" of the Collective Agreement, and casual employees.
- 1.03 <u>Permanent Part-time Employees</u> This Collective Agreement is fully applicable to all permanent part-time employees who work at least half the normal work week and sessional employees, and subject to 24.02.
- 1.04 Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties agree that casual, temporary, grant and replacement employees shall be entitled to the rights and benefits of this Collective Agreement to the extent outlined in Appendix "E".
- 1.05 Work of the Bargaining Unit Persons whose jobs are not in the Bargaining Unit shall not work on any jobs which are included in the Bargaining Unit, except for emergencies or purposes of instruction.
- 1.06 When new classifications or positions are developed, the University agrees to consult with the Union as to whether such classifications or positions should be included in the Bargaining Unit. Should the Union and the University be unable to agree, the matter shall be referred to the P.E.I. Labour Relations Board.
- 1.07 No employee shall be required or permitted to make a written or verbal agreement with the Employer or Employer Representative which may conflict with the terms of this Collective Agreement.

ARTICLE 2 - MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- 2.01 The Union acknowledges that it is the exclusive function of the Employer, subject to the terms of the Collective Agreement:
 - 1. To operate and manage the University and to direct the work force in accordance with its commitments and responsibilities;
 - 2. To select, hire, transfer, promote, demote, classify, lay-off, suspend or discharge an

employee for cause and to maintain order, discipline and efficiency;

3. To establish standards and schedule of operation.

ARTICLE 3 - NO DISCRIMINATION

- 3.01 The Employer and the Bargaining Union, their respective servants and agents, agree that there shall be no discrimination, interference, restrictions or coercion exercised or practised with respect to any employee in the matter of wage rates, training, upgrading, promotion, transfer, layoff, discipline, discharge by reason of race, ethnic origin, creed, colour, national origin, political or religious affiliation, sex, sexual orientation, age, marital status, family relationship, or a handicap when the employee is capable of performing or fulfilling the essential duties or requirements of a position. The Employer also agrees that it will not, either directly or through any person acting on its behalf, discriminate against any person in its employ because of such person being an officer, steward, committee member or member at large of the Union.
- 3.02 <u>Harassment: Harassment is not allowed.</u> Reasonable attempts should be made to resolve cases of harassment before a formal complaint is made. The principles of fairness and confidentiality shall apply throughout the whole procedure.

If a formal complaint is made, the incident must be reported immediately to the Employer. Full written documentation of the incident must be made available to the Employer and should include such information as date, witnesses, remarks and actions.

The University of Prince Edward Island Fair Treatment Policy shall apply.

For clarity the University's Fair Treatment Policy cannot and does not restrict the rights of employees in this bargaining unit to access the grievance procedure as a result of an issue of harassment, whether or not they choose to utilize the University's Fair Treatment Policy.

- 3.03 There shall be no discrimination against HIV-Positive Members, as reflected in the University of Prince Edward Island Policy on Aids (Appendix C).
- 3.04 The Parties acknowledge their joint duty to accommodate the observance of religious holidays of the employees in the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 4 - BARGAINING UNIT SECURITY AND CHECK-OFF

4.01 (a) All employees of the University of Prince Edward Island who have signed Union cards indicating their desire to belong to the Union and all those employees who have been hired since the date of application for certification by Local 1870 CUPE, and fall into the classifications covered by this Agreement, shall, as a condition of continued employment with the Employer, authorize the deduction of Bargaining Union dues from their wages.

All those employees who were employed by the University of Prince Edward Island prior to application for certification and who have not signed Union cards and are not desirous of becoming Union members, shall as a condition of continued employment, authorize the deduction of a sum equivalent to union dues from their wages to be donated to a registered charity of their choice. The Employer agrees to deduct and forward these monies to the various charities.

The Employer further agrees to forward to the Union, monthly, a list showing these deductions.

All future employees of the Employer who are eligible as members of the Bargaining Unit shall, as a condition of continued employment, authorize the deduction of Bargaining Unit dues from their wages.

Union dues will be deducted from all casual, temporary, grant and replacement employees if they are performing work which is covered by this Collective Agreement. All such employees are eligible for University and Union benefits as described in Appendix E.

- (b) The University agrees to provide the Union with the e-mail address (if provided by the new employee), home address and home phone number for all new employees immediately upon the employee starting their position with UPEI for the sole purpose of Union communications with their members and no other reason. The Employer further agrees, as part of the new employee orientation process, to include a welcome letter from Local 1870, which the Local will provide, as well as an up to date copy of the CUPE Local 1870 and UPEI Collective Agreement.
- 4.02 The Employer agrees with respect to each of the employees covered by this Agreement, (save and except those employees as indicated in the second paragraph of Article 4.01) to deduct from the wages of such employees, all Bargaining Unit dues levied by the Bargaining Unit on its members and these dues shall be transmitted monthly to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Bargaining Unit accompanied by a list of employees showing contributions.
- 4.03 The University shall not be responsible, financially or otherwise, either to the Bargaining Unit or the individual employee, for any failure to make deductions, or for making an inaccurate deduction of dues. However, the University will attempt to take every reasonable measure to ensure an accurate accounting of this check-off system.
- 4.04 If, for any reason, any portion of this contract is contrary to law, the parties hereto agree that such portion is severable and separable from the remainder of the contract and that the contract, in all other respects, shall continue in full force and effect in accordance with the terms thereof. The parties to this agreement shall negotiate a replacement for any portion of such article rendered null and void.

ARTICLE 5 - NON-BARGAINING UNIT EMPLOYMENT

- 5.01 The Employer agrees that work or services presently performed by members of the Bargaining Unit shall not be sub-contracted, transferred, leased, assigned or conveyed, in whole or in part, to any organization, institution, person, company or non-bargaining unit employee where such action results in the layoff, failure to recall, reduction in the hours of work or regular pay of any permanent member of the Bargaining Unit unless mutually agreed by the Employer and the Union.
- 5.02 The parties agree that the foregoing (Article 5.01) shall not apply to any transfer of work or services to any University subsidiary company which may be established and where present members of the Bargaining Unit have been offered positions with the company at comparable salaries and conditions.

ARTICLE 6 - REPRESENTATION AND BARGAINING COMMITTEE

- 6.01 <u>Representation</u>: No individual employee or group of employees shall undertake to represent the Bargaining Unit at meetings with the Employer without proper authorization of the Bargaining Unit. In order that this may be carried out, the Bargaining Unit will supply the Employer with the names of its Officers. Similarly, the Employer will, if requested, supply the Bargaining Unit with a list of its Supervisory or other Personnel with whom the Bargaining Unit may be expected to carry out transactions.
- 6.02 <u>Bargaining Committee</u>: A Bargaining Committee shall be appointed and consist of not more than five (5) members of the Employer, including any alternate(s) as appointees of the Employer, and not more than five (5) members of the Bargaining Unit, including any alternate(s) as appointees of the Bargaining Unit. The Bargaining Unit will advise the Employer of the Bargaining Unit nominees to the Committee.
- 6.03 <u>Function of the Bargaining Committee</u>: All matters pertaining to the interpretation, amendment, and/or renegotiation at the termination of this Agreement, shall be referred to the Bargaining Committee for discussion and settlement as well as Collective Bargaining on operational problems, rates of pay, hours of work, working conditions.

ARTICLE 7 - LABOUR MANAGEMENT

- 7.01 A Labour-Management Cooperation Committee shall be established consisting of not more than three (3) members of the Bargaining Unit and not more than three (3) representatives of the University. The Committee shall enjoy the full support of both parties to this Agreement in the interest of maximum service to the University Community.
- 7.02 Meetings of the Committee: In the event either party wishes to call a meeting of the Committee, the meeting shall be held at a time and a place fixed by mutual agreement. However, such meetings must be held not later than ten (10) working days after the request has been given.

7.03 <u>Time Off for Meetings</u>: Any members of the Bargaining Unit on the Bargaining Committee, the Labour-Management Cooperation Committee, the UPEI Health and Safety Committee, the Grievance Committee, or any other committees sanctioned by the University, shall have the privilege of attending Committee meetings held within working hours without loss of remuneration provided that, in all cases, the efficient operation of the University must take precedence.

ARTICLE 8 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- 8.01 The University recognizes the right of the Bargaining Unit to appoint or otherwise select a Grievance Committee of three (3) members who shall be members of the Bargaining Unit. The Personnel of such Committee shall be communicated to the University Administration within five (5) working days of appointment.
- 8.02 A grievance under this Agreement shall be defined as a difference between the parties relating to the interpretation, application, administration, operation or alleged violation of the Agreement, including any question as to whether a matter is arbitrable.
- 8.03 Employee Grievance: The aggrieved employee(s), shall, within ten (10) working days of the alleged violation of this Agreement, submit the grievance in writing to the Chair of the Bargaining Unit Grievance Committee. If the Grievance Committee of the Bargaining Unit considers the grievance to be justified, the employee(s) concerned, together with a member of the Grievance Committee, shall, within five (5) working days seek to settle the dispute with the employee(s)' Department Head.
- 8.04 Failing satisfactory settlement under 8.03 within ten (10) business days, the employee(s) concerned, together with a member of the Grievance Committee shall submit to the University Vice-President, Administration and Finance, a written statement of the particulars of the grievance and the redress sought. The Vice-President, Administration and Finance shall hold a meeting and shall declare the Employer's position and render the decision in writing, within ten (10) business days after receipt of the grievance.
- 8.05 Failing satisfactory settlement under 8.04 within five (5) working days, the Bargaining Unit may, on giving five (5) working days notice in writing, notify the University of their intention to refer the grievance to arbitration.
- 8.06 <u>Policy Grievance:</u> Where a difference arises between the parties relating to the interpretation, application, administration, operation or alleged violation of this Collective Agreement:
 - (a) The Union may submit a written statement of the particulars of the grievance and the articles claimed to be violated, with the redress sought to the Vice-President, Administration and Finance. The Vice-President, Administration and Finance shall convene a meeting with the Union within ten (10) business days following receipt of

- the grievance and shall declare the University's position, in writing, within ten (10) business days after the meeting.
- (b) The University may submit a written statement of the particulars of the grievance and the articles claimed to be violated, with the redress sought, to the Chair of the Union Grievance Committee. The Union shall convene a meeting with the University within ten (10) business days following receipt of the grievance and shall declare the Union's position, in writing, within ten (10) business days after that meeting.
- 8.07 Failing satisfactory settlement under Article 8.06, within the five (5) working day period, either party may notify the other of its intent to refer the grievance to arbitration.
- 8.08 The University and the Union may mutually agree to by-pass any or all of Steps 8.06 and 8.07 of this article and go directly to arbitration.
- 8.09 Grievances and replies to grievances shall be in writing at all stages.
- 8.10 In cases of unacceptable settlement (8.03, 8.04), the grievor must state why the decision is unacceptable.
- 8.11 Grievances settled satisfactorily, within the time allowed, shall date from the time the violation occurred.
- 8.12 The University shall supply the necessary facilities for the grievance meeting.
- 8.13 The Bargaining Unit and the University reserve the right to file a grievance.
- 8.14 The time limits fixed under this Article may be varied by mutual consent of the parties of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 9 - ARBITRATION

- 9.01 <u>Composition of Board of Arbitration</u>: When either party requests that a grievance be submitted to arbitration, the request shall be made by registered mail addressed to the other party of the Agreement, indicating the name of the nominee for its party to the Board of Arbitration. Within five (5) working days thereafter, the other party shall answer by registered mail, indicating the name and address of its appointee to the Board of Arbitration. The two arbitrators shall then meet to select an impartial Chairperson. If further time is requested, it may be mutually agreed upon.
- 9.02 <u>Failure to Appoint</u>: If the recipient of the notice fails to appoint an Arbitrator or the two appointees fail to agree upon a Chairperson, within five (5) working days of appointment, the appointment shall be made by the Minister of Provincial Affairs and Attorney General for the Province of Prince Edward Island upon request of either party.

- 9.03 <u>Board Procedure</u>: The Board may determine its own procedures consistent with present Provincial Labour Legislation and shall give full opportunity to all parties to present evidence and make representation to it. It shall hear and determine the difference or allegation and render a decision within ten (10) working days from the time the Chairperson is appointed or within such other period as the parties mutually agree.
- 9.04 <u>Decisions of the Board</u>: The decision of the majority shall be the decision of the Board. Where there is no majority decision, the decision of the Chairperson shall be the decision of the Board. The decision of the Board of Arbitration shall be final and binding on the employee, the Bargaining Unit and the University, but in no event shall the Board of Arbitration have the power to change this Agreement or to alter, modify, or amend any of its provisions.
- 9.05 <u>Disagreement on Decision</u>: Should the parties disagree as to meaning of the decision, either Party may apply to the Chairperson of the Board of Arbitration to reconvene the Board to clarify the decision. The Board shall reconvene as soon as conveniently possible.
- 9.06 <u>Expenses of the Board</u>: Each party shall pay the fees and expenses of the Arbitrator it appoints and one-half (2) the fees and expenses of the Chairperson.
- 9.07 <u>Amending Time Limits</u>: The time limits fixed in both the grievance and arbitration procedures may be extended by the mutual consent of the parties to this Agreement.
- 9.08 At any stage of the grievance or arbitration procedure, the Parties may have the assistance of the employee(s) concerned as witnesses and any other witnesses, and all reasonable arrangements will be made to permit the conferring parties or the Arbitrator(s) to have reasonable access to the Employer's premises to view any working conditions which may be relevant to the settlement of the grievance.
- 9.09 Any members of the Bargaining Unit giving testimony before an Arbitration Hearing, and one (1) CUPE 1870 representative, shall have the privilege of attending the Arbitration proceedings during working hours without loss of wages, benefits, or seniority.

ARTICLE 10 - HOURS OF WORK

- 10.01 The normal work week will be the period of time from midnight Sunday to the following Sunday at midnight.
- The normal work week, except where varied by the Employer to allow for summer hours or to meet emergencies or unusual situations, shall be as follows:
 - a) <u>Laundry</u>: Five (5), eight (8) hour days for a forty (40) hour week, exclusive of lunch breaks;
 - b) Positions in the Faculty of Veterinary Medicine: Five (5), seven and one-half (7 ½)

hour days for a thirty-seven and one-half (37 ½) hour week, exclusive of lunch breaks;

c) Other Locations: As established by the University, either five (5), six and three quarter (6 ³/₄) hour days for a thirty-three and three quarter (33 ³/₄) hour week, or five (5), seven and one-half (7 ¹/₂) hour days for a thirty-seven and one-half (37 ¹/₂) hour week, exclusive of lunch breaks.

10.03 Flexible Hours of Work:

If an employee other than a shift employee requests a flexible daily hours of work system, the Employer may authorize varied starting and finishing times and lunch periods. In all cases, the efficient operation of the Unit must take precedence.

10.04 All Employees are Subject to Scheduling:

The hours, days of weeks, shift hours, starting and quitting times as determined by the Employer. The Employer will give the employees at least forty eight (48) hours notice of any shift changes unless otherwise mutually agreed between the employee and the employer.

- 10.05 Effective upon the signing of this collective agreement, a shift premium of \$1.25 per hour will be paid to those employees who work a rotating shift that begins between 4:00 p.m. and 5:00 a.m.
- 10.06 Shift premiums, subsequent to those negotiated and contained in Article 10.05 shall increase at the same rate as those wage rate increases negotiated by the parties during each round of negotiations thereafter.

ARTICLE 11 - OVERTIME

- 11.01 All time worked before or after the employee's regular work day and the regular work week, or on a holiday, shall be considered overtime.
- 11.02 Overtime rates for work shall apply as follows:
 - a) On a regular work day: time and one-half the regular hourly rate.
 - b) On a regularly scheduled day off: double time.
- 11.03 <u>Lay Off to Compensate for Overtime</u>: Employees shall not be required to lay off during regular hours to equalize any overtime worked. However, by mutual consent between the Department and the employee, the employee may be allowed to add one and one-half (½) days to the employee's vacation leave credits, where the employee earns overtime at the rate of time and one-half, and the employee may be allowed to add two (2) days to the employee's vacation leave credits where overtime is earned at the rate of double time, in lieu of pay, for each six and three-quarters (6 ¾) hours of overtime worked or seven and one-half (7 ½) hours of overtime worked or eight (8) hours of overtime worked where

- applicable to a maximum of fifteen (15) working days at any one time which must be taken in the year in which the accumulation takes place.
- 11.04 <u>Minimum Call Back Time:</u> Any employee who is requested to work outside the employee's regular working hours shall be paid for a minimum of:
 - a) Two (2) hours at the applicable overtime rate whether or not work is performed provided, however, the employee reports for duty in person and where the employee was notified of such request to work overtime, during the employee's regular working hours.
 - b) Four (4) hours at the applicable overtime rate whether or not work is performed, provided however, the employee reports for duty in person and where the employee was notified of such request to work overtime, outside the employee's regular working hours.

Article 11.04 will not apply when the overtime is continuous with and subsequent to the normal working period.

All overtime worked shall have the prior approval of the Supervisor or Department Head.

- 11.05 Permanent employees of the Employer covered by this Agreement shall be given first option at available over-time.
- 11.06 (a) Permanent part-time employees described in Section 1.03 shall accumulate overtime for work performed beyond their normal working hours in accordance with Section 11.02.
 - (b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, where temporary increases in the workload of part-time employees occur, the hours of work of part-time employees may be temporarily increased to a schedule providing for a greater number of hours within the regular work week; provided, however that forty-eight (48) hours notice of such change has been given to the employee, that the number of hours in any one day for which the regular rate of pay is given does not exceed the regular number of hours of other employees in similar full-time positions. If the expanded work schedule continues for five (5) or more working days, within any four (4) week period, the employee shall be paid at the rate of time and one-eighth (1 1/8) of regular salary for the expanded hours. The Employer agrees to make alternate arrangements if the employee gives evidence of legitimate reasons for not being able to accept the expansion in working hours.
- 11.07 When the University has been closed because of storm conditions and employees are required to work, the employees shall be given equal time off in lieu at a date as mutually agreed upon by the employee and the Employer.

11.08 On Call Provisions:

When an employee is designated by the Vice-President, Administration and Finance to be "On-Call", that is, immediately available by telephone contact, radio or paging device, the employee shall be paid in accordance with the following schedule:

(a) \$10.06 - 01Nov12 \$10.24 - 01May13 \$10.42 - 01May14 \$10.65 - 01May15

per shift or any part of a shift where a shift is defined as:

- i) eight (8) a.m. until four (4) p.m.,
- ii) four (4) p.m. until midnight, and
- iii) midnight until eight (8) a.m.
- (b) The Employer agrees to adjust the on-call premium in Article 11.08 (a) by an amount that is proportionate to the adjustment to salary effective upon the signing of this collective agreement and for each subsequent year thereafter.
- (c) All hours actually worked by an "On Call" employee shall be paid at overtime rates in accordance with Article 11.04(a) of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 12 - PAYMENT OF WAGES AND ALLOWANCES

- 12.01 <u>Pay Days:</u> The Employer shall pay salaries and wages (every two weeks) in accordance with Schedule "A" attached hereto and forming part of this Agreement. On each pay day each employee shall be provided with an itemized statement of the employee's wages, overtime and other supplementary pay and deductions.
- 12.02 <u>Assignment to Higher Classification:</u> When an employee has been assigned by the Department Head to work in a job of a higher classification, the employee shall be paid at the appropriate rate for all hours worked, after having worked at least ten (10) days (accumulative over fiscal year) including the initial ten (10) days. This clause shall not apply to those employees where part of the job description calls for the employee to act in the Department Head's absence from work through days off, sickness, holidays or vacation.
- 12.03 <u>Equal Pay for Equal Worth:</u> Employees shall receive equal pay for equal worth, regardless of sex.
- 12.04 <u>Pay on Transfer, Lower Rated Jobs:</u> When an employee is assigned to a position paying a lower rate, the employee's rate shall not be reduced but will be frozen until the rate for the job reaches the rate being paid to the employee.

- 12.05 <u>Mileage Allowance</u>: Mileage rates paid to an employee using the employee's own automobile for the Employer's business shall be as laid down in University policy.
- 12.06 <u>Educational Allowance:</u> The Employer shall pay the cost of an academic or technical course requested by the Employer.

12.07 Professional Development Fund

- (a) The Employer agrees to establish a Professional Development Fund (PDF) of \$25,000.00 per annum effective May 1st, 2011.
- (b) A committee, composed of two (2) appointees of the Union and two (2) appointees of the Employer, will be established to develop the terms of reference for the administration of the Fund.
- (c) The parties agree that a report and a review of the program will be conducted at the end of each fiscal year.
- **12.08** Severance Notice and Pay: An employee will be given four (4) months notice or an equivalent combination of notice and pay if the employee=s employment is terminated because the Employer ceases wholly or partly the operations or merges with another Employer or changes operating methods.
- 12.09 Rest Period During Overtime Hours: Where an employee is required to work overtime and such overtime may be excessive, the employee shall be entitled to a ten (10) minute break for each four (4) hour period of overtime. Such break may be taken midway in the period.

ARTICLE 13 - ATTENDANCE AT WORK

- 13.01 Attendance of employees at their place of work shall be recorded by: Automatic time register, attendance record register, or other such means as may be determined by the Board of Governors or the Administration.
- 13.02 Each employee is required to record attendance on arrival at and departure from the place of work in both the forenoon and the afternoon of each working day or on any other occasion when the employee is at work. If an employee fails to record attendance, the employee may be denied payment of salary for the work period that is incompletely recorded.
- 13.03 Any employee without the authority of the Supervisor or Assistant Supervisor who:
 - 1) Tampers with an attendance report, or
 - 2) Records time on or in the register for another employee, or
 - 3) Induces another employee to record the employee's attendance, whether falsely or not,

- on or in the register, or
- 4) In any manner falsifies the attendance record, is liable for dismissal.
- 13.04 An employee who is absent from work without prior authorization shall inform the Head of the Department or the Assistant and shall communicate the reason for the absence to the Head of the Department or the Assistant as soon as possible and, in any case, within the first hour of such absence unless it is shown that it was impossible to do so.
- 13.05 Any leave of absence from work for which pay may be allowed, excepting sick leave, must be applied for and authorized by the Head of the Department or the Assistant before such leave is taken.
- 13.06 When an employee returns to duty after a period of absence, the reasons for the absence shall be entered in the attendance report or report card.
- 13.07 An employee who is late arriving at work shall report the reason therefore to the Head of the Department or the Assistant. If they consider that no deduction of pay should be made for such lateness, the paymaster's office shall be notified.
- 13.08 When pay is deducted for lateness, such deductions shall be made at the following rates:
 - 1) For lateness of 1 to 5 minutes: No deductions
 - 2) For lateness of 5 to 15 minutes: One-quarter hour pay.
 - 3) For lateness of 15 to 30 minutes: One-half hour pay.
 - 4) For every additional half-hour lateness or fraction thereof, an additional half-hour pay.
- 13.09 During working hours, no employee shall take leave from the University Campus without the permission of the Head of the Department or delegate. An employee leaving the Campus with permission shall register with the Department Head or delegate giving the following information: Name, whether personal or University business, if University business, the location of the place, person or persons to be visited and the approximate time of return.

ARTICLE 14 - LOST TIME

14.01 At the completion of each pay period, employees owing the University time shall have such time deducted from their pay on a straight time basis. Such time, up to one (1) working day in length, shall be recorded on the absent time form provided by the University. As well, such lost time may be made up by the employee working extra time, within one (1) pay period. The Department Head shall determine the schedule of make up time.

ARTICLE 15 - REST PERIODS

15.01 Employees shall be allowed two (2) rest periods per day not exceeding ten (10) minutes each, one in the first half of the shift and one in the second half.

ARTICLE 16 - PAID HOLIDAYS

16.01 (a) For employees on a Monday to Friday work schedule, the following shall be considered paid holidays and be paid for at the regular rate of pay to employees who are not obliged to perform services on such days:

New Year's Day
Good Friday
Easter Monday
Victoria Day (or the day proclaimed)
Thanksgiving
Remembrance Day
Christmas Day
Boxing Day
Canada Day

Labour Day Civic Holiday (Gold Cup and Saucer Day)

Islander Day

and all other such days approved by special proclamation of the Federal Government or the Provincial Government of Prince Edward Island or the Board of Governors of the University of Prince Edward Island.

(b) For employees whose regular work week encompasses Saturday and/or Sunday as regular working days, the following shall be considered paid holidays and shall be observed on the calendar day on which they fall. Employees who are not obliged to work on these days shall be paid at the regular rate of pay:

New Year's Day
Good Friday
Easter Sunday
Victoria Day (or the day proclaimed)
Thanksgiving
Remembrance Day
Christmas Day
Boxing Day
Canada Day

Labour Day Civic Holiday (Gold Cup and Saucer Day)

Islander Day

and all other such days approved by special proclamation of the Federal Government or the Provincial Government of Prince Edward Island or the Board of Governors of the University of Prince Edward Island.

- 16.02 To become eligible for the above paid holidays, an employee must have worked the last scheduled shift before and the first scheduled shift after the holiday unless authorized by the Employer to be absent on either or both such shifts.
- 16.03 All employees regularly scheduled to work on any statutory holiday as defined in Article 16.01 of this Agreement, shall be paid at the rate of twice the employee's regular hourly rate on an overtime basis for all hours worked on such days, in addition to their regular day's

pay.

- 16.04 Permanent employees of the Employer covered by this Agreement shall be given first option at available work on days as listed in Article 16.01 of this Agreement.
- 16.05 When a day designated as a holiday coincides with an employee's day off, the University shall grant the holiday with pay on either:
 - a) the day immediately following the employee's day off, or
 - b) the day following the employee's annual vacation, or
 - c) be credited with an equivalent amount of time off with pay.

ARTICLE 17 - VACATIONS

- 17.01 Employees will be granted vacations with pay according to the following schedule:
 - 1. Employees with less than seven (7) full years of continuous service shall accumulate vacation credits at the rate of 1.25 working days per month or fifteen (15) working days per annum.
 - 2. Employees with seven (7) or more full years of continuous service shall accumulate vacation credits at the rate of 1.66 working days per month or twenty (20) working days per annum.
 - 3. Employees with sixteen (16) or more full years of continuous service shall accumulate vacation credits at the rate of 2.08 working days per month or twenty-five (25) working days per annum.
 - 4. During the first six (6) months of employment, no vacation leave shall be granted but shall be considered as accumulating during that period.
 - 5. An employee appointed on the first working day of the month shall be eligible to begin accumulating vacation credits from that date. An employee appointed on any day subsequent to the 15th of the month shall be eligible to begin accumulating vacation credits from the first of the month immediately following the date of appointment.
 - 6. All vacation leave must be approved by the Head of the Department or the Assistant prior to the commencement of such leave.
 - 7. Vacation periods may not be split without prior approval of the Head of the Department or the Assistant provided, however, that employees entitled to three weeks of annual vacation may be obliged to take two weeks only during the summer

- months in order to provide more summer vacation leave for other employees of the Bargaining Unit.
- 8. The University may, on mutual agreement, pay at straight time rates, in lieu of time off from work, for all vacation leave credits in excess of two calendar weeks.
- 9. No employee shall accumulate more than the equivalent of two year's vacation entitlement whether through the non-use of vacation credits or leave credits in lieu of overtime pay.
- 17.02 Employee's vacation preferences shall be solicited prior to April 1, of each year and the vacation schedule posted by April 1. Subsequent requests for vacation shall be allocated on a first come, first serve basis. The schedule shall not be changed unless emergency requirements of the Department force postponement of such vacation dates or unless mutually agreed upon by the employee and the Employer.
- 17.03 Vacations shall be granted on the basis of length of service within the Department provided, however, that the senior employee who splits vacation entitlement into two or more vacation periods may only use the service preference for one period of vacation in any one year.
- 17.04 <u>Holidays during Vacation</u>: If a paid holiday falls or is observed during an employee's vacation period, the employee shall be granted an additional day's pay for each holiday in addition to the employee's regular vacation time or an additional day's vacation, in lieu of pay, upon mutual agreement between the employee and the University.
- 17.05 <u>Illness during Vacation</u>: Sick leave may be substituted for vacation where it can be established by the employee that an illness or accident occurred while on vacation. This does not, however, give such employee the right to pre-empt another employee's vacation period.
- 17.06 <u>Vacation Schedule</u>: Vacation schedules for all employees within the Bargaining Unit shall be posted by April l of each year and shall not be changed unless emergency requirements of the Department force postponement of such vacation dates or unless mutually agreed upon by the employee and the Employer.
- 17.07 No employee shall be required to work during the employee's scheduled vacation period. However, should an employee agree to work, when requested, during the vacation period, the employee shall be compensated at double time the regular rate for seven (7) hours, whether or not the employee actually works seven (7) full hours and if the employee is requested to work beyond seven (7) hours, the employee shall be compensated at two (2) times the normal rate for all hours worked.

17.08 Advance Vacations

- a) Subject to subsection (b) hereof, at the request of an employee and upon approval of his/her Supervisor or Department Head, an employee with two (2) years or more of continuous completed service may be granted a maximum of five (5) days from the vacation to be earned for the following vacation year.
- b) If an employee has taken advance vacation and terminates employment without having earned such advance vacation, the equivalent pay for the number of days taken shall be deducted from monies owing to the employee at the time of termination.

ARTICLE 18 - SICK LEAVE

- 18.01 <u>Sick Leave Provisions</u>: Sick leave means the period of time an employee is permitted to be absent from work by virtue of being sick or disabled, exposed to contagious diseases, or because of an accident for which compensation is not payable under the *Workers' Compensation Act*.
- 18.02 <u>Amount of Sick Leave</u>: Sick leave benefits will accumulate at the rate of one and one-quarter (1 1/4) working days for each full calendar month of service up to a maximum accumulation of one hundred and ninety-five (195) working days. Any period of sick leave which is granted with pay shall be deducted from this accumulation.
- 18.03 a) Sick leave credits will be allowed from the first day of illness. The University may require a doctor's certificate to be presented for sick leave credits after three (3) consecutive days.
 - b) The employer shall have the right to request a doctor's certificate to be presented, regardless of the duration of the leave, for sick leave credits utilized in excess of fifteen (15) days in any calendar year.
- 18.04 Employees terminating their services with the University shall not be entitled to receive accrued sick leave credit or the pay thereof.
- 18.05 Permanent and probationary employees may be provided with an advance of sick leave credits, up to a maximum of fifteen (15) days, to cover periods for which they do not have sick leave accumulation.
- 18.06 To qualify for an advancement of sick leave credits, the following conditions must be met:
 - a) the employee must be under a medical doctor's care,
 - b) it must be shown that the employee has not misused previously advanced sick leave credits within this contract.

- c) approval of the Personnel Department must be obtained, and
- d) the decision to advance sick leave credits will not be refused by the University in an arbitrary and discriminatory manner.
- 18.07 Sick leave credits earned subsequent to an advancement of credits shall be applied against advanced credits; however, an employee may request a further advance before all previously advanced credits have been repaid provided the total outstanding balance will not exceed fifteen (15) days.
- 18.08 Employees, whose employment is terminated for any reason other than death, layoff or permanent disability, and who have not repaid all advanced sick leave credits, shall reimburse the Employer in an amount equal to the benefits granted.
- 18.09 If an employee becomes incapable of performing the regular normal duties of the employee's classification through accident or illness, the University will, if suitable employment is available, provide such employment as the employee is capable of performing, if another employee is not thereby displaced. If alternate suitable employment is not available, the employee will be placed on layoff status. This provision shall not apply to any employee who is eligible for payment under a disability plan or who qualifies for benefits under the *Employment Insurance Act* until such benefits have expired. Nothing in this clause (18.09) derogates from the applicability of Workers Compensation or the sick leave provisions of the Collective Agreement.

ARTICLE 19 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE

- 19.01 When the requirements of the Department will permit, employees may be allowed leave of absence, without pay, not exceeding ninety (90) days in any one calendar year. Leaves of absence must be authorized in writing and the Bargaining Unit shall be notified of any employees on authorized leave. Where the fringe benefits plans allow, the employee may remain covered by these plans by paying both the employee and employer cost. Employees on leave of absence under Article 19.01 shall continue to accumulate seniority.
- 19.02 An employee may request a leave of absence, not to exceed one (1) year, without pay and without loss of seniority. Such a request shall be in writing and be granted provided that the efficient operation of the Department or Unit takes precedence.

While on such extended leave of absence, an employee shall retain but shall not continue to accumulate all accrued benefits and shall continue to accumulate seniority benefits under this Collective Agreement. Where the fringe benefit plans allow, the employee may remain covered by these plans by paying both the employee and the Employer cost.

In the event that an extension of a leave of absence without pay is granted for a period beyond one (1) year, the employee shall accumulate seniority for the first year only.

- 19.03 <u>For Bargaining Unit Business</u>: Where permission has been granted to a Representative of the Bargaining Unit to leave the employee's regular duties temporarily in order to carry out negotiations with the Employer, or with respect to a grievance, the employee shall suffer no loss of pay on regular wages for the time so spent.
- 19.04 Should the Executive of the Union so request, any member may be permitted a reasonable amount of time off without pay, in order to transact legitimate Union business as a Representative of the said Union.

19.05 Bereavement Leave:

- a) An employee shall be granted ten (10) working days leave without loss of salary or wages in the case of death of a spouse, common-law spouse, or child.
- b) An employee shall be granted five (5) working days leave without loss of salary or wages in the case of death of a parent, brother or sister.
- c) An employee shall be granted three (3) working days leave without loss of salary or wages in the case of death of a grand-parent, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son or daughter-in-law, grand-child, fiance, fiancee, or any second degree relative who has been residing in the same household. Where the burial occurs outside the Province, such leave may be extended to a maximum of five (5) working days to allow travel time provided the employee shows that the employee did, in fact, leave the Province to attend such funeral.
- 19.06 Employees, upon application to their Supervisor and upon reasonable proof thereof, shall be granted one (l) day bereavement leave for funeral duties without loss of salary or wages.
 - Also, employees upon application to their Supervisor and upon reasonable proof thereof, shall be granted one (l) day bereavement leave with pay, for any second degree relative (e.g. uncle, aunt, first cousin) not covered by Article 19.05.
- 19.07 Education leave may be granted on an individual basis at the discretion of the Employer, this discretion shall not be applied in an arbitrary or discriminatory manner. Any benefits based on service and seniority shall be retained but not accumulated. When the employee returns, they shall be placed in a position equivalent to that which they held prior to the education leave.
 - Leave of absence with pay and without loss of seniority shall be granted to allow employees time to write examinations to improve qualifications provided the taking of such examinations is requested by the University.
- 19.08 <u>Paid Jury or Court Witness Duty Leave</u>: The Employer shall grant leave of absence without loss of seniority benefits to an employee who serves as a juror or witness in any court. The Employer shall pay such an employee the difference between the normal earnings and the payment he received for jury service or court witness, excluding payment for travelling,

- meals or other expenses. The employee will present proof of service and the amount of pay received. Time spent by an employee required to serve as a court witness in any other matter arising out of employment shall be considered as time worked at the appropriate rate of pay.
- 19.09 <u>Emergency Leave</u>: An employee may be allowed up to six (6) days per annum, paid leave of absence, when the employee requests such leave for good and sufficient cause. Such leave shall be granted at the discretion of the Employer.
- 19.10 Absence due to weather or travel conditions shall be considered grounds for emergency leave provided the employee has reported the absence in the proper manner, and if the Employer is satisfied that every reasonable effort was made to be at work. This Article is not subject to the grievance procedure.
- 19.11 An employee shall be granted up to five (5) working days leave per annum without loss of salary or wages in the case of serious illness of a parent, spouse, brother, sister, child, grandparent, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, son or daughter-in-law, grand-child, common-law spouse, fiance, fiancee, or any second degree relative who has been residing in the same household. A medical certificate signed by a qualified practitioner may be required after two (2) consecutive days.
- 19.12 (a) At the written request of the Union, and where operational requirements permit, the University shall grant leave of absence with pay for members delegated by the Union Executive or the membership to attend CUPE or Labour sponsored educational courses, lectures, workshops or conventions. The total number of days available under this clause will be ten (10) days per calendar year. The Union shall request such leave of absence at least ten (10) working days in advance of the proposed leave date(s).
 - (b) An employee elected to or selected by the Union to a provincial or federal body of CUPE, to the Federation of Labour or to the Canadian Labour Congress and on whose behalf the Union makes a written request for a leave of absence from their work, with a minimum of two (2) weeks notice to the Employer, shall be granted leave of absence without pay of up to two weeks. In the case where the leave of absence period requested exceeds two (2) weeks, a minimum of four (4) weeks notice shall be required.
- 19.13 Employees who qualify for benefits pursuant to the requirements for *Compassionate Care Benefits* under the *Employment Insurance Act*, shall be granted leave of absence without pay of up to eight (8) weeks. During the leave the employee will continue to accumulate all benefits and seniority under this collective agreement. If the employee chooses to make contributions for the period of the leave to the pension or benefits plan, the Employer will pay the Employer=s contributions for the same period. On return from leave, employees will be placed in their former position.

- The employee may request an extension to the leave, in writing, should circumstances warrant. Such extension shall be treated as a leave of absence without pay.
- 19.14 The Employer recognizes the rights of employees to participate in public affairs. Therefore, upon written request, the Employer will grant leave of absences without pay but without loss of seniority so that employees may be candidates in a Federal, Provincial, or Municipal election.
- 19.15 Any employee elected to public office, shall be granted leave of absence without pay or loss of seniority by the Employer for a period of up to one (1) year. Such leave shall be renewed each year, upon request, during their term of office. The leave of absence shall not exceed one term or five (5) years, whichever is greater.

ARTICLE 20 - SENIORITY

- 20.01 <u>Seniority defined</u>: Seniority will be shown in two categories:
 - 1. <u>Employment Seniority</u>: Length of employment with the University.
 - 2. <u>Classification Seniority</u>: Length of employment in a particular classification.
- 20.02 The length of employment with the University, regardless of classification, will be recognized in the following matters:
 - 1. Vacations
 - 2. Leaves of absence
 - 3. Lay-offs and Recalls
 - 4. Any matter not specifically applicable to classification seniority.
- 20.03 The length of employment within a classification will be recognized in the following matters:
 - 1. Promotions
 - 2. Training
 - 3. Transfers
 - 4. Demotions
- 20.04 <u>Seniority List</u>: The Employer shall maintain a seniority list showing the date on which each employee's employment commenced, the classification and salary level currently held, amount of full time service in the University employ, and the amount of seniority accumulated in the CUPE 1870 Bargaining Unit. The Employer shall supply the Union with, and post copies of this list by April 30 of each calendar year.
- 20.05 <u>Loss of Seniority</u>: An employee shall not lose seniority rights if the employee is absent from work because of sickness, accident, lay-off, or leave of absence approved by the Employer. An employee shall lose all seniority rights in the event:
 - 1. The employee is discharged for just cause and not re-instated.

- 2. The employee resigns in writing and does not withdraw within two (2) days after the Employer receives the letter of resignation.
- 3. The employee is absent from work in excess of one (1) working day without notifying the Employer unless such notice was not reasonably possible.
- 4. Following a lay-off, the employee fails to return to work within five (5) working days after being notified by registered mail to do so, unless through sickness or other just cause. It shall be the responsibility of the employee to keep the Employer informed of the employee's current address.
- 5. Notwithstanding 4 above, employees may refuse a recall to work, without prejudicing her/his right to recall in the future, where such recall is for a period of less than ninety (90) days duration.
- 6. An employee on layoff shall retain seniority rights, including the right to recall, for a maximum of five (5) years from the date of layoff, subject to the conditions stated in Article 21 <u>Lay-off and Recall</u> and in Appendix E.

20.06 Transfers and Seniority Outside of the Bargaining Unit:

No employee shall be transferred to a position outside the Bargaining Unit without the employee's consent. If an employee is transferred to a position outside of the Bargaining Unit, the employee shall retain all seniority accumulated up to the date of leaving the Unit, but will not accumulate any further seniority.

An employee shall have the right to return to a position in the Bargaining Unit during the employee's trial period. If an employee returns or is returned to the Bargaining Unit, the employee shall be placed in a job consistent with the employee's seniority. Such return shall not result in the lay-off or bumping of an employee holding greater seniority.

- 20.07 If the position occupied by an employee in the Bargaining Unit becomes an excluded position, that employee shall continue to accumulate seniority within the Bargaining Unit for a period of one (1) year from the date of exclusion. If the employee remains in the position after the one year period, the provisions of clause 20.06 shall apply.
- 20.08 Permanent part-time and sessional employees shall accumulate seniority on a pro-rated basis (effective May 1, 1993).
- 20.09 When the term of employment for which casual, temporary, grant, and replacement employees have been hired, has been completed and the employee is subject to layoff, the casual, temporary, grant or replacement employee shall not be entitled to exercise any accumulated seniority to displace another employee.

ARTICLE 21 - LAY OFF AND RECALL

21.01 Layoff shall mean:

the termination or a permanent reduction in regular hours of employment of a probationary or permanent, part-time or sessional employee due to:

- a) a lack of work: or
- b) a reduction or a discontinuation of a service or services.
- 21.02 Employees shall be laid off in the reverse order of their Employment seniority, provided the employees retained are qualified to do the work. Employees shall be recalled to work in order of their Employment seniority provided they are qualified to do the work.
- 21.03 The Employer shall notify any employee subject to lay off four (4) months before the layoff is to be effective. If any notified employee does not have the opportunity to work four (4) months after the notice of layoff, payment shall be made in lieu of work for that part of the four (4) months during which work was not made available.
- 21.04 An employee who is subject to lay-off shall have the choice to either:
 - 1. accept a permanent severance and receive a severance allowance in accordance with Article 29; or
 - 2. accept the layoff and be placed on a recall list; or
 - 3. exercise his or her bumping rights.
- 21.05 The employer shall provide the employee with a written notice of the options, with a copy of the notice sent to the President and Secretary of CUPE local 1870. The employee shall respond in writing within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of the notice indicating his or her choice.
- 21.06 Employees who are on layoff or under notice of layoff, shall be, if qualified, appointed without competition to a vacant position in their former classification and level, provided the hours of work are equivalent, in accordance with Article 21.09 1. Notwithstanding Article 23, this vacant position shall not be posted.

Bumping

- 21.07 Subject to Appendix E, an employee who is subject to lay-off and who has chosen the option of bumping will be given the opportunity of displacing (bumping) an employee in the bargaining unit who has less Employment seniority in the following order, provided the senior employee is qualified to do the work:
 - 1st: in the same or comparable rate of pay within the employees's own classification
 - 2nd: in the same or comparable rate of pay in another classification
 - 3rd: a lower rate of pay, within the employees's own classification
 - 4th: a lower rate of pay, in another classification

- 21.08 In cases where the position chosen has a lower number of hours of work per week than the employee's previous position, the employee will receive the hourly rate of pay and the regular weekly hours of work of the new position.
- 21.09 For the purpose of applying the bumping provisions for this Article:
 - 1. A position which is thirty-three and three quarters (33.75) hours per week and one of thirty-seven and a half (37.5) hours per week shall be deemed as equivalent, full-time
 - 2. an appointment of three quarter (.75) FTE (Full-Time Equivalent) shall be considered as equivalent full-time.
- 21.10 A part-time employee cannot displace a full-time employee with less seniority.
- 21.11 The employer shall provide the employee with a copy of the current seniority list. The employee shall respond in writing within fifteen (15) working days of receipt of the notice indicating his or her choice. In all cases, the employee must be qualified to perform the work.
- 21.12 The employee who is displaced through bumping shall, in turn, be given notice of layoff and shall proceed in accordance with the rights and obligations of Article 21, and so forth, until such time as there is no further displacement.

Recall

- 21.13 Sudden and unexpected short term vacancies and replacements of less than fifteen (15) working days may be filled at the discretion of the Employer. However, upon indicating their interest in writing, employees on lay off who wish to be considered for such short term employment shall receive first opportunity for appointment, provided they meet the qualifications. With the exception of the circumstances outlined earlier in this paragraph (21.13), no new employees shall be hired until all laid off employees have been given the opportunity to return to work.
- 21.14 Employees who are laid off and are on the recall list are entitled to apply for any job vacancies arising out of job postings.
- 21.15 Subject to Article 21.22, an employee on lay-off shall retain seniority rights earned to the date of lay-off, and shall retain right to recall for a maximum of five (5) years from the date of the lay-off. For further clarity, employees on lay off by virtue of having their hours of work reduced, but who remain employed with the University on an on-going basis, shall not lose seniority rights after five (5) years as referenced in this paragraph (21.15) and shall continue to accumulate seniority based on their hours worked. However, these employees will be subject to the loss of the right to recall after five (5) years from the date of lay-off in the event that they have not exercised that right.

- 21.16 With the exception of seniority accumulated to the date of lay-off, all employee benefits shall cease from the date of lay-off. However, employees on lay off shall have the right to continue their Supplementary Health Care Benefits by paying the full cost of the premiums during their layoff. Should a laid off employee choose to opt out of the Supplementary Health Care Benefits, they shall not have the opportunity to return to the Supplementary Health Care Benefits Plan until they are recalled, and return to work. Such return to the Plan will be subject to the conditions of the Plan at that time.
- 21.17 Recall rights shall exist for a period of five (5) consecutive years and shall lapse if the lay-off lasts more than five (5) consecutive years.
- 21.18 The Employer shall notify the employee being recalled, in writing, requiring proof of delivery to the last address on file. The notification shall state the position to which the employee shall be eligible to be recalled and the location, date and time at which the employee is to return to work.
- 21.19 It shall be the employee's responsibility to keep the employer informed of the employee's current qualifications and current address.
- 21.20 The employee shall notify the Director of Human Resources of acceptance within five (5) working days after receiving the recall notice.
- 21.21 Loss of Seniority and Recall Rights
 - a) Employees on recall are subject to the rights and obligations of provisions of Article 20.05. Where an employee fails to notify the employer or to return to work in accordance with the recall notice without just cause, he or she shall lose all seniority and shall be deemed to have quit the employ of the University and any Supplementary Health Care benefits shall cease.
 - b) Employees may be recalled to a position for which they are qualified:
 - in the same or comparable rate of pay within the employee's own classification; or
 - in the same or comparable rate of pay in another classification; or
 - a lower rate of pay, within the employees=s own classification; or
 - a lower rate of pay, in another classification.
 - c) Notwithstanding 21.21 b) and 21.06, employees who are offered recall to a position, which would result in a permanent reduction in their regular hours of employment, as laid out in Article 21.01, shall have the right to refuse such recall without affecting their recall status. Should the laid off employee accept a recall under this paragraph then they shall be taken off the recall list.

21.22 Recall to Temporary Employment

- a) In the case where an employee on lay-off is recalled and accepts the recall for a temporary period of less than ninety (90) calendar days, the period worked shall be counted towards his or her seniority. The recall period shall be suspended for the period of the term employment, but shall resume when employment ends and the employee is once again on lay-off.
- b) Employees who are recalled for temporary periods of work in excess of ninety (90) days and are subsequently laid off shall have their recall rights renewed for a period of five (5) consecutive years.
- c) Employees who are recalled for temporary periods of work shall not require a notice of lay-off when the recall is for a specific period and the lay-off date is predetermined and announced at the time of the recall.
- 21.23 Employees shall receive a Severance Allowance based on their actual annual salary at the original date of layoff, at the conclusion of the layoff period or when there is a permanent severance, whichever is sooner.

ARTICLE 22 - PROBATION

- 22.01 <u>Probationary Period</u>: A new employee hired on a permanent basis into any classification covered by this Agreement will be on probation for a period of six (6) months following the date of employment. A new employee working through the probationary period shall be regarded as coming within the scope of this Agreement except that the employee may be released from employment without recourse to the grievance procedure.
- 22.02 The University reserves the sole right to make the decision regarding the retention or release of an employee at any time during the probationary period but agrees to notify the employee no later than ten (10) working days prior to the end of the period if termination or extension action is to be taken. The probationary period may be extended for reasons given for an additional sixty (60) days by written agreement.
- 22.03 In the event that a probationary employee=s absence(s) or breaks of service exceed five (5) days, the employer may extend the probationary period by an equivalent number of days.
- 22.04 A probationary employee who is the successful applicant for a subsequent position, shall serve a new and separate probationary period for the new appointment.
- 22.05 Probationary employees shall not be considered for any posted position ahead of permanent full-time, permanent part-time or replacement, grant and temporary employees with more than one year of continuous service as defined in Article 20.10 of Appendix "E".

ARTICLE 23 - PROMOTIONS AND STAFF CHANGES:

23.01 <u>Job Postings</u>:

- 1) a) When a vacancy occurs or a new position is created either inside or outside of the Bargaining Unit, the Employer shall post notice of the position on the UPEI web-site and on the Human Resources bulletin board for a period of at least one (1) week.
 - b) The Employer agrees to maintain a list serve group for those employees who wish to have all postings sent to them via e-mail. Employees will need to subscribe to the list serve group in order to receive electronic posting information.
- 2) (a) When a new, permanent position is created within the Bargaining Unit, the Employer will have the position evaluated by the Job Evaluation Committee in order to calculate the point value for the position. The point value and the classification series will determine the salary level for the job.
 - (b) When a new replacement, grant or temporary/term position within the Bargaining Unit is created that is essentially the same as a position that already exists, the new position shall be assigned the same classification as the existing position. For all other new replacement, grant or temporary/term appointments, the Employer shall, within six (6) months of the appointment, prepare, sign and submit a Job Fact Sheet to be evaluated in accordance with this Article and the pay rate shall be adjusted retroactive to the incumbent's date of appointment to the position, or as provided in Appendix E. In the event that the classification is lower than the appointment classification, the incumbent's rate of pay shall remain in place until the end of the term period, but shall be adjusted to the evaluated classification for any subsequent renewals or extensions.
- 3) When a vacancy is declared within the Bargaining Unit by the Employer, the position will be open to competition within fifteen (15) working days of such declaration.

23.02 <u>Information in Postings</u>: Such notice shall contain the following information:

Nature of position, qualifications, required knowledge and education, skills, shift, wage or salary rate or range and the Union name and Local number of the bargaining unit which represents the position, where applicable.

Such qualifications and requirements shall be those necessary to perform the job function and shall not be established in an arbitrary or discriminatory manner.

23.03 In promotion and demotion, qualifications and ability to perform the work required shall be a determining factor. Where qualifications and ability to perform the work required are

- equal, then seniority shall be the deciding factor. Ability to perform the work required shall be determined by management.
- 23.04 <u>Trial Period</u>: The successful applicant for a promotion or transfer shall be placed on trial for a period of six (6) months. Conditional on satisfactory performance, such trial promotion will become permanent after the period of six (6) months.
 - In the event the successful applicant proves unsatisfactory in the position during the aforementioned trial period or, if the employee is unable to perform the duties of the new job classification, the employee shall be returned to the former position and appropriate step on the salary scale, or to a comparable position if the former position is not readily available, without loss of seniority. By mutual written agreement, the trial period may be extended an additional sixty (60) days.
- 23.05 Any other employee transferred or re-classified because of the return of an employee to the employee's former position, through clause 23.04 above, shall be returned to the former position and appropriate step on the salary scale, or to a comparable position if the former position is not readily available, without loss of seniority.
- 23.06 <u>Promotions Requiring Higher Qualifications:</u> In case of promotion requiring higher qualifications and no qualified employee is available, the Employer shall give consideration to the senior employee who does not possess the required qualifications, but is preparing for qualification, prior to filling of a vacancy. Such employee will be given an opportunity to qualify within a reasonable length of time, as determined by the University, and if the required qualifications are not met within such time, the conditions of return, as outlined in clauses 23.04 and 23.05 above, shall apply.
- 23.07 <u>Union and Employee Notification:</u> Within seven (7) calendar days of the date of appointment to a vacant position, the name of the successful applicant shall be posted in a prominent place. The Union shall be notified of all appointments, hirings, lay-offs, transfers, recalls and terminations of employment.
- 23.08 Where an employee is an unsuccessful applicant for a job vacancy or a new position, within the Bargaining Unit, that employee shall be notified at the same time as the successful candidate.

23.09 Job Evaluation

The Union Executive shall have access to the Aiken Plan used by UPEI for Job Evaluation to assist in facilitating employee training in the Job Evaluation process.

The Union Executive shall be provided the point totals for all positions evaluated under this job evaluation process. The Union understands that this point total information is confidential and will not be disclosed to the general membership of the Union.

A position may be submitted for review when:

- a) an employee believes that the duties have changed sufficiently to warrant a review, or
- b) the employer recognizes that the position has changed, or wishes to change some duties sufficiently to warrant a review

23.10 The following procedure shall be followed when making a request for review:

- a) unless it is clear that an injustice will result, a request for review will not proceed within one (1) year of a prior review.
- b) the employee shall advise his or her supervisor and Department Head in writing, citing the basis on which the review is being requested.
- c) at the employee's request, the Department of Human Resources will provide the Job Fact Sheet (JFS) and the scores assigned to each of the factors under the Aiken Plan, the Classification Level, and the date, of the last review of the Job Fact Sheet provided for the position within ten(10) working days.
- d) the employee will check the Job Fact Sheet for completeness and accuracy of duties assigned by the Employer. If changes are warranted an updated or a new Job Fact Sheet shall be completed, highlighting the changes, and submitted to the supervisor for completeness and department head for review.
- e) both the supervisor and the Department Head shall review and sign the Job Fact Sheet prior to submission and shall be able to add their comments regarding the accuracy and completeness of the information contained in the Job Fact Sheet.
- the employee shall be given the opportunity to see and respond to the comments of the supervisor and the department head before the position is submitted for review. The Employee, Supervisor, and department head will try to resolve any discrepancies prior to submission for review. In the event a discrepancy cannot be resolved, both employee and supervisor shall be entitled to include additional information to the evaluation committee, provided such additional information has been reviewed by both the incumbent employee and the supervisor.
- g) the Job Fact Sheet along with the employee's written request shall be forwarded to the Human Resources Department.
- h) the Department of Human Resources shall coordinate the process.
- i) The Union and the Employer, through the Human Resources Department, shall conduct such investigation as necessary to ensure the accuracy of the JFS and its conformance to University job evaluation standards and in doing so may conduct interviews with the supervisor and/or department head and/or the employee.

j) Any additional information obtained during the joint investigation shall be provided to the supervisor, department head and the employee. Such information will form part of the information provided for job evaluation to the Review Committee.

23.11 Job Evaluation Committee

The Job Evaluation Committee shall be composed of seven (7) representatives of CUPE 1870, seven (7) representatives of the University Administration. Alternates from any group may serve as required on the Committee, but any member of the Job Evaluation Committee must have been trained in job evaluation. The employer will arrange and pay for the training. From this Committee two (2) separate panels shall be struck.

- a) 1. A Review Panel of two (2) CUPE 1870 employees and two (2) employees from University Administration.
 - 2. An Appeals Panel of two (2) CUPE 1870 employees, two (2) employees from the University Administration.
- b) No Representative shall sit on both the Review Panel and the Appeal Panel for any one particular Job Fact Sheet analysis.
- c) The Committee members will be appointed for a three (3) year period, renewable.

23.12 The system of review will consist of:

- a) the completion and review of the Job Fact Sheet, including any updates and additional information.
- b) evaluation of the JFS by members of the Review Panel using the Aiken Plan, including consideration of information provided under 23.10. If the Review Panel determines that it needs additional clarification, the JFS shall be referred to Human Resources for further joint Union and Employer investigation and report. Scores are established for the individual factors by consensus agreement. In the event of failure to reach consensus, the decision will be by majority vote of the Review Panel. If no majority decision is reached, one additional representative, selected at random from available Job Evaluation Committee representatives, will participate with the Review Panel for that position and decisions will be by majority vote for all factors.
- c) sending Review Panel results to the Vice-President, Administration and Finance by the Review Panel for budget approval.
- d) notification to the employee by the Department of Human Resources of the scores assigned to each of the factors under the Aiken Plan, including rationale for any

changes, the Classification Level, the effective date, and any change in the classification title assigned to his/her position. In the event that the Review Panel determines that the JFS describes duties that are inconsistent with the duties required by the position, the Review Panel will inform the employee and their Supervisor in writing.

e) the right of an employee to appeal the decision of the Review Panel by requesting in writing that the Job Fact Sheet be evaluated by the Appeal Panel, as set forth in article 23.13.

23.13 Joint Job Evaluation Appeal Procedures

1) An Employee has the right to appeal the results of their classification review.

For an appeal to be considered:

- a) an employee requesting appeal must complete the *Request for Appeal of Job Evaluation Review Results* form.
- b) the *Request for Appeal of Job Evaluation Review Results* form must indicate the reason for appeal of the evaluation review based on specific criteria as laid out in the Aiken Plan.
- c) an appeal shall not be submitted to, or considered by, the Appeal Panel:
 - (i) Unless procedures governing a request for review, have been followed.
 - (ii) On the basis of new information which differs from the information provided for the initial review by the Review Panel.
- 2) The appeal will proceed as follows:
 - a) the Job Fact Sheet shall be evaluated by members of the Appeal Panel using the Aiken Plan. Initial scores shall be established for individual factors by consensus agreement. In the event of failure to reach consensus, one additional Job Evaluation Committee representative shall be selected at random to join the panel and the decision shall be by majority vote of the Appeal Panel.
 - b) the Review and Appeal Panels scores shall be compared. However, to prevent bias, the Appeal Panel must not know the specific Review Panel factor scores for an appealed position until after the appeal factor scores have been generated. If the Appeal Panel scores are different from those of the Review Panel, both panels would mutually examine the justification for the respective factor value assessments.

- c) the Appeal Panel shall decide the final scores.
- d) The Appeal Panel results shall be sent to the Vice-President, Administration and Finance for budget approval.
- e) notification to the employee shall be provided by the Department of Human Resources indicating the scores assigned to each of the factors under the Aiken Plan, including rationale for any changes, the Classification Level, the effective date, and any change in the classification title assigned to his/her position.
- f) In the event that the Appeal Panel determines that the JFS describes duties that are inconsistent with the duties required by the position, the Appeal Panel will inform the employee and their Supervisor in writing.

23.14 Time Lines

- a) Employees may submit requests for review semi-annually by June 30th and December 31st respectively. Employees must submit their completed JFS to their department head at least 30 calendar days in advance of the semi-annual deadline. Any resulting change shall be effective from the first day following the semi-annual deadline; i.e., January 1st for December 31st and July 1st for June 30th.
- b) the Review Panel shall meet, consider, and respond to the application within one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days of the semi-annual deadline.
- c) the employee shall have thirty (30) calendar days from receipt of written notification of results, to file an appeal to Human Resources.
- d) the Appeal Panel shall meet and respond within ninety (90) calendar days of the filing of an appeal.
- 23.15 If the Employer requests a Job Evaluation and the Employee's position is re-classified at a lower level, the employee shall continue to be paid at their current rate of pay, benefits, and receive all future negotiated increases. If the position is filled at a later date, the new incumbent will be paid the job's current rate of pay for the assigned level.
- 23.16 If the employee requests the Job Evaluation, and the employee's position is re-classified at a lower level, the employee's rate of pay shall not be reduced but shall be frozen until the rate of the job reaches the rate being paid to the employee.
- a) In the event that the status of a position occupied by a temporary/term employee changes from term to a permanent position, the incumbent shall also receive a permanent appointment, provided the employee has a minimum of five years of seniority.

- b) The application of this article shall result in the waiving of the posting provisions of Article 23 and the recall provisions of Article 21.
- c) This article does not apply to "grant employees."

ARTICLE 24 - INSURANCE

24.01

- (a) The Supplementary Health Care Plan is governed by a Joint trusteeship. It is the trustees who will manage the plan and any participation and/or consultation with the union will take place within the terms of the trustee agreement signed by the parties.
- (b) Changes in these policies will be made only after consultation with the Bargaining Unit. For all joint benefits other than the Supplementary Health Care Plan there shall be a Joint Benefit Advisory Committee or other advisory committee set up by the University whose function it is to consider changes in University policy relative to insurance coverage. A union representative will be invited to actively participate on any such committees.
- 24.02 (a) The cost of the premium for the Supplementary Health Care Plan shall be shared on the basis of 50% employee and 50% employer.
 - (b) Sessional employees may continue Supplementary Health Care Plan coverage during the sessional period they are not regularly working at their own expense in accordance with the provisions of the Plan.
- 24.03 Supplementary Health Care Plan coverage will be paid for by the University for past retired and future retired members on the basis of whatever cost sharing was in effect at the time of their retirement.
- 24.04 Grant Employees shall only be enrolled in such Supplementary Health Care and Insurance Plans for which they are eligible and for which funding is available.
- 24.05 The Memorandum of Agreement for the establishment of the UPEI Health Care Trust, signed by the parties on October 12, 2001, remains in effect, unless otherwise mutually agreed by the parties to the memorandum of agreement.

ARTICLE 25 - SAFETY AND HEALTH

25.01 <u>Cooperation on Safety:</u> The Bargaining Unit and the Employer shall cooperate in continuing the perfecting of regulations and obtaining proper equipment which will afford adequate protection to employees.

- 25.02 <u>Injury Pay Provisions:</u> An employee who is injured during working hours and is required to leave for treatment or is sent home as a result of such injury, shall receive payment for the remainder of the work day at the employee's regular rate of pay, without deduction from sick leave, unless a doctor or nurse states that the employee is fit for further work on the shift.
- 25.03 <u>Union Health and Safety Committee</u>: In order to promote the Occupational Health and Safety of employees, the Employer acknowledges the right of the Union to have a representative on the UPEI Health and Safety Steering Committee. The Union shall notify the Employer in writing of the names of each Representative.

25.04 <u>Video Display Terminals:</u>

- (a) (i) Prospective VDT Operators may be required to take an initial eye examination and may be rejected on the basis of existing chronic eye disease.
 - (ii) VDT Operators may request an annual eye examination.
- (b) The University agrees to take every reasonable step to:
 - (i) ensure that new VDTs have adjustable key boards and screens.
 - (ii) minimize lighting glare.

ARTICLE 26 - GENERAL CONDITIONS

- 26.01 <u>Bulletin Boards:</u> The Employer shall supply bulletin boards which shall be placed so that all employees in the Bargaining Unit will have access to them and upon which the Bargaining Unit shall have the right to post notices of meetings and other notices as may be approved by the Employer.
- 26.02 <u>Plural or Feminine Terms May Apply</u>: Whenever the singular, masculine or feminine is used in this Agreement, it shall be considered as if the plural, feminine or masculine has been used where the context of the party or parties hereto so require.
- 26.03 <u>Legal Fees:</u> The Employer shall pay all legal costs for any action initiated against an employee by virtue of the performance of the employee's employment duties.
- 26.04 Part-time and sessional employees shall be eligible to participate in the following University programs and under the stated conditions:
 - (a) Tuition fees one (1) undergraduate course per semester at no cost.
 - (b) Bookstore discount under the same conditions as full-time employees.

- (c) Veterinary Teaching Hospital supplies and services under the same conditions as full-time employees.
- (d) Sports Centre facilities upon payment of the fee applicable to other employees.

26.05 Tuition Waiver:

The Spouse and Dependent(s) of:

- Permanent Employees (including Sessional Employees as defined in the Collective Agreement) with a yearly FTE 0.50 or greater;
- Temporary (term) employees, as defined in the Collective Agreement, with a yearly FTE 0.50 or greater and greater than one (1) year of continuous service;

Shall be eligible to apply for a (50%) fifty percent tuition discount for all courses offered by UPEI in any undergraduate program. The waiver shall be calculated based on the cost of a regular undergraduate course to a maximum lifetime total of 120 credit hours per student.

The tuition waiver for eligible part-time Permanent and Temporary (term) Employees will be pro-rated according to the yearly FTE.

Grant Employees are not eligible.

"Spouse" shall mean a person who either is legally married to an Employee or cohabits with the Employee for at least twelve (12) months in a conjugal relationship.

"Dependent(s)" are defined as a child (through birth, adoption or legal guardianship) of an Employee, who is under 26 years of age at the start date of the semester.

ARTICLE 27 - DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE

- 27.01 An employee who is disciplined or discharged shall be furnished with a letter stating the precise charge at the time this action is taken.
- 27.02 The University shall not thereby be prevented from subsequently assigning other causes or reasons justifying the action and of which it became aware after such action was taken so long as this additional information pertains to the original charge or cause which initiated the discharge or discipline.

- 27.03 An employee will be notified about and permitted to read any letter of complaint which concerns the work of the employee and which is to be entered into the employee's personnel file. The employee will sign the letter to indicate that the employee has read it. The employee may attach a note of explanation, clarification or rebuttal to the letter. Upon the employee's request, any such letters will be removed from the employee's file, after two (2) years have elapsed since the letter(s) were placed in the file providing that no further discipline has occurred during that period.
- 27.04 Also, it is the right of the employee, upon written request, to inspect the employee's own personnel file. Any such request will be fulfilled within a period of one (1) month.

ARTICLE 28 - RETIREMENT AND PAY

- 28.01 Retirement benefits shall be as laid down in the By-Laws or Regulations as drawn up by the University and shall become part of this Agreement. A Union representative will have the right to actively participate on the Board Pension Advisory Committee or any other advisory committees whose function it is to consider changes in University policy relative to Retirement Benefits.
- 28.02 (a) When an employee retires, the employee shall be granted a sum payment equivalent to one month's salary for each five (5) years of consecutive full-time and/or part-time service, to a maximum of six (6) months.
 - (b) Service shall be calculated to the last anniversary date of the employee and each full year in excess of five (5) years shall entitle the employee to an additional one-fifth of the monthly rate.
 - (c) The rate of retirement pay shall be calculated on the basis of the annual salary being paid to the employee immediately prior to the retirement date or the average of the employees salary over the five (5) years immediately prior to retirement date whichever is greater.

ARTICLE 29 - SEVERANCE ALLOWANCE

29.01 Employees whose employment is terminated for reasons other than discipline, retirement or resignation, shall be entitled to receive two (2) weeks pay for each year of continuous service to a maximum of fifty-two (52) weeks pay.

ARTICLE 30 - STRIKES AND LOCKOUTS

30.01 The Union agrees that there shall be no illegal strikes as defined by the *Labour Act*, stoppage of work, slowdowns or picketing and the Employer agrees that there shall be no lockout as defined by the *Labour Act* during the term of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 31 - JOB SECURITY

31.01 All job classifications listed on Appendix "F" attached hereto shall remain in force for the duration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 32 - RESOLUTIONS AND REPORTS OF THE BOARD

- 32.01 <u>Employer Shall Notify Union:</u> The Employer agrees that any reports or recommendations about to be made to the Board dealing with matters of policy and/or conditions of employment and which affect employees within this Bargaining Unit, shall be communicated to the Union in time to afford the Union a reasonable opportunity to consider them and, if deemed necessary, of speaking to them.
- 32.02 <u>Copies of Resolutions:</u> Copies of all motions, resolutions and by-laws or rules and regulations adopted by the Board which affect the members of this Union are to be posted in a prominent place with a copy sent to the Secretary of the Union.

32.03 Copies of UPEI Pension Plan Documents

The University shall provide, on an ongoing basis, to CUPE 1870 representatives on the Board Pension Advisory Committee, or upon request of the CUPE 1870 President, the following information:

Plan text, employee booklet, plan amendments, actuarial report, minutes of meetings of the Board Pension Advisory Committee and of the Pension Investment Review Committee, or similar committees where decisions are made affecting the pension plan or the pension fund, pension policies and procedures including investment policy, annual financial reports, and investment performance reports.

Individual members of the UPEI Pension Plan shall have access to annual statements of their pension contributions.

ARTICLE 33 - MATERNITY/PARENTAL/PATERNITY LEAVE

Preamble:

The notice provisions of this Article relating to Maternity and Parental leaves are taken from, and in accordance with, the *Employment Standards Act* of Prince Edward Island. The Act provides for minimum notice periods to be given by the employee to the University for the commencement of, and return from, leave which are relatively short and which may cause problems for the University in finding replacement employees and making arrangements for the continuation of employee benefits. The University recognizes and accepts the limits placed upon it by the Act but would request and encourage employees to give a longer period of notice to ensure a smoother transition to leave and return to work.

33.01 Every employee who:

- a) has been in the employment of the University for a continuous period of twenty (20) weeks or more;
- b) makes an application for maternity leave at least four (4) weeks before the day specified by the employee as the day on which the employee intends to commence the leave; and
- c) provides the University with a certificate of a qualified medical practitioner certifying that the employee is pregnant and specifying the estimated date of birth.
 - shall be granted maternity leave in accordance with the following conditions:
- 33.02 The maternity leave to which an employee is entitled shall consist of a period of up to twenty (20) weeks commencing at any time during the period of eleven (11) weeks immediately preceding the estimated date of birth.
- 33.03 Notwithstanding the foregoing, where the actual date of birth is later than the estimated date of birth, the employee is entitled to no less than six (6) weeks leave after the actual date.

Where working conditions may be hazardous to an unborn child or to the pregnant employee, the employee may be transferred to an alternate position provided she is capable of performing the work.

The employee may return to work and the Employer may permit the employee to return to work at a date earlier than six (6) weeks after the date of delivery.

The employee is entitled to resume work in the position occupied by the employee at the time such leave commenced or, if that position no longer exists, in a comparable position with not less than the same wages and benefits the employee would have received if the employee had not been granted maternity leave.

- During this period, the employee shall retain all accrued benefits and full seniority shall accumulate. The employee may retain the fringe benefits by continuing to pay the appropriate share of any cost-shared employee benefits, and
 - An employee who provides the Employer with proof that she has applied for and is eligible to receive maternity benefits under the provisions of the *Employment Insurance Act* shall be paid an allowance for fifteen (15) weeks. The allowance shall be equivalent to the difference between the weekly EI benefits the employee is eligible to receive and one hundred percent (100%) of her weekly rate of pay.

- 33.05 <u>Procedure upon Return from Maternity Leave:</u> When an employee decides to return to work after maternity leave, she shall provide the Employer with at least two (2) weeks notice.
- 33.06 At any time during maternity leave, the employee may draw two (2) weeks pay, which shall be deducted from accumulated sick leave days.

Parental Leave

- 33.07 (A) Every employee who:
 - a) has been in the employment of the University for a continuous period of twenty (20) weeks or more;
 - b) i) in the case of a female employee, becomes the natural mother of a child;
 - ii) in the case of a male employee, becomes the natural father of a child or assumes actual care and custody of a new born child;
 - iii) assumes actual care and custody of a new born child; or
 - iv) adopts or obtains legal guardianship of a child under the law of a Province
 - c) submits application for parental leave at least four (4) weeks before the day specified in the application as the day on which the employee intends to commence the leave,
 - is entitled to, and shall be granted parental leave without pay consisting of a continuous period of up to thirty-five (35) weeks. If the employee has taken the full twenty (20) weeks as provided in Article 33.02, the total parental leave will be thirty-two (32) weeks.
 - (B) In the case of adoption and legal guardianship, an application for parental leave pursuant to Subsection 33.07(A)(c) shall not be required earlier than the date on which the employee is notified of the placement of the child.
 - (C) Subject to Subsection 33.07 (E), parental leave must commence no later than the first anniversary date of the birth or adoption of the child or on the date on which the child comes into the actual care and custody of the employee.
 - (D) An employee who wishes to resume working at the expiration of parental leave under this Section shall give the Employer two (2) weeks notice of the day on which the employee intends to resume working for the Employer.
 - (E) Where an employee intends to take parental leave in addition to maternity leave, the employee must commence the parental leave immediately on expiry of the maternity

leave without a return to work after expiry of the maternity leave and before commencement of the parental leave.

Every employee who makes application for, and is granted parental leave under this Article, continues to accumulate seniority during the period of leave and may continue any cost-shared employee benefits by paying the appropriate share of any cost-shared employee benefits.

- 33.08 Notwithstanding any other provision of this article, the aggregate amount of leave that may be taken by an employee under Article 33.02 and 33.07(a) in respect of the same event shall not exceed fifty-two (52) weeks.
- 33.09 Paternity leave shall cover a period of up to five (5) days commencing no later than the date of the child's discharge from the hospital, or date of birth if birth is not in hospital.
- 33.10 Leave Without Pay for the Care and Nurturing of Pre-School Age Children

An employee may request a leave of absence, not to exceed one year, for the purpose of caring for and nurturing pre-school age children. Such leaves shall be without pay and without loss of seniority. Such a request shall be in writing and be granted provided that efficient operation of the Department and or Unit takes precedence.

While on such extended leave of absence, an employee shall retain but shall not continue to accumulate all accrued benefits and shall continue to accumulate seniority benefits under this Collective Agreement. Where fringe benefit plans allow, the employee may remain covered by these plans by paying both the employee and Employer cost.

In the event that an extension of a leave of absence without pay is granted for a period beyond one (1) year, the employee shall accumulate seniority for the first year only.

ARTICLE 34 -REPRESENTATIVE OF THE CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES

34.01 The Union shall have the right at any time to have the assistance of a representative of the Canadian Union of Public Employees when dealing or negotiating with the Employer. Such representative shall have access to the Employer's premises in order to investigate and assist in the settlement of a grievance.

ARTICLE 35 – WORKERS' COMPENSATION

35.01 (a) An employee prevented from performing their regular work with the Employer on account of an occupational accident that is covered by the *Workers' Compensation Act* shall be paid by the Workers' Compensation Board.

- (a) An employee who has filed a claim under the *Workers' Compensation Act* shall be eligible to apply for sick leave during any required waiting period. In the event that the employee receives compensation from the Workers' Compensation Board for the waiting period, the employee shall repay the employer for the sick leave utilized during the waiting period, and any sick leave granted will be re-credited to the employee's sick leave bank.
- 35.02 Notwithstanding Article 35.01, in the event that the salary of an employee, at the time of a claim under the *Workers' Compensation Act*, exceeds the maximum annual earnings established by regulation, the Employer shall, during the period the employee is in receipt of temporary earnings loss benefits, continue to pay the employee an amount equal to 80% (85% after 38 weeks) of net income on a bi-weekly basis on that portion of salary which is in excess of the maximum earnings recognized by the Workers' Compensation Board. The calculation of net pay entitlement shall be made in the same manner as the calculation made by the Workers' Compensation Board up to the maximum earnings.
- 35.03 When an employee is in receipt of Workers' Compensation Board benefits for a period of ten (10) working days or more, the Employer will pay, during the period while the employee is receiving temporary earnings loss benefits pursuant to the *Workers' Compensation Act*, the full costs of the employee's premiums where the employee prior to her injury participated in Group Life and Group Medical Insurance Plans and will make the employee's pension contributions.
- 35.04 The absence of an employee who is receiving compensation benefits under the *Workers' Compensation Act*, shall not be charged against the employee's sick leave credits or vacation credits.
- 35.05 An employee who is receiving compensation under the *Workers' Compensation Act*, shall continue to earn the benefits of this Agreement, save and except statutory holidays.
- 35.06 An employee who is injured during working hours, and is required to leave for treatment, shall receive payment for the remainder of the shift at her regular rate of pay, without deduction from sick leave, unless the attending physician states that the employee is fit for further work on that shift.

ARTICLE 36 - DEFERRED SALARY LEAVE PLAN

36.01 Description

- (a) The Deferred Salary Leave Plan shall afford employees the opportunity of taking a leave of absence for one (1) year, and, through deferral of salary, finance the leave.
- (b) The University and employees may enter into any variation of this Plan by mutual consent of the two parties involved.

36.02 Eligibility

Any permanent or permanent part-time employee working fifty (50%) percent and over with the University is eligible to participate in the Plan.

36.03 Application and Approval

- (a) 1. An employee shall make written application to the employee's Supervisor on or before January 31st of the year in which the deferment is to commence, requesting permission to participate in the Plan.
 - 2. Notwithstanding 36.03 (a), the University may waive the deadline of January 31st under special circumstances.
- (b) Written acceptance or denial, of the employee's request, with explanation, shall be forwarded to the employee by April 1st in the year the original request is made.
- (c) All employees wishing to participate in the Plan shall be required to sign a contract before final approval for participation shall be granted.

36.04 Salary Deferral

- (a) In each year of participation in the Plan preceding the year of leave, an employee shall be paid a reduced percentage of regular salary. The remaining percentage shall be deferred and this accumulated amount plus interest earned shall be paid to the employee during the year of leave.
- (b) The salary deferred shall be deposited in a deposit account in trust for each employee. The terms and conditions related to the deposit account at the Bank with which the Employer deals shall apply.
- (c) In the year of the leave, the Employer shall pay to the employee the total of the deferred income plus all accrued interest in installments conforming to the regular pay periods.

36.05 Benefits

- (a) An employee's benefits shall be maintained by the Employer during the leave of absence. Any benefits tied to salary shall be structured according to actual salary paid.
- (b) Sick leave credits and vacation leave credits shall not accumulate during the year spent on leave; however, employees shall be permitted to carry over any unused credits upon their return.

(c) Employees who are members of the Pension Plan shall have pension contributions deducted on salary received in each year of participation in the Plan.

36.06 Withdrawal from the Plan

- (a) An employee may withdraw from the Plan any time prior to taking the leave of absence. Upon withdrawal, all the deferred salary plus accumulated interest shall be paid to the employee within sixty (60) days of notification of withdrawal from the Plan.
- (b) In the event that a suitable replacement cannot be obtained for an employee who has been granted leave, the Employer may defer the year of leave. In this instance, an employee may choose to remain in the Plan or withdraw and receive all the deferred salary plus accumulated interest to the date of withdrawal. Repayment shall be made within sixty (60) days of the date of withdrawal from the Plan.
- (c) Should an employee die while participating in the Plan, all the deferred salary plus accumulated interest at the time of death shall be paid to the employee's beneficiary.
- (d) An employee who has had employment terminated by the Employer shall be required to withdraw and shall be paid all deferred salary plus accumulated interest to the date of withdrawal. Repayment shall be made within sixty (60) days of the date of withdrawal from the Plan.

36.07 <u>Deferral of Leave</u>

If the year of leave is deferred past the intended date of commencement, all deferred salary plus accumulated interest shall continue to accumulate interest until the leave of absence is granted.

36.08 Return from Leave

- (a) On return from leave, employees shall return to their previous positions or to positions similar to that which they held immediately prior to going on leave.
- (b) An employee participating in the Plan shall be eligible upon return to duty, for any increase in salary and benefits that would have been received had the one year leave of absence not been taken.

ARTICLE 37 - TERM OF AGREEMENT

37.01 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall be to the benefit of and be binding on both parties for conditions and wages as herein provided from and after **May 1**st, **2012** and thereafter shall continue in force from year to year unless notice in writing is given not less than ninety (90) days next preceding the expiry date in any

- year by either party giving notice to the other party of a desire to negotiate a new working Agreement or amend the existing Agreement.
- 37.02 Both parties agree that either party may upon written notice as per this Article, give to the other party, notice of their intent, to re-open the Agreement by **April 30th**, **2016**. The party requesting the re-opener shall specify in its request the Articles it wants to negotiate. The recipient of the notice shall also be given the opportunity to specify any Articles it may want to re-open and shall enter into negotiations within twenty (20) working days of receipt of such notice.

The parties recognize that this Article (37) shall apply in its entirety should the parties reopen the Agreement.

ARTICLE 38 - ANNIVERSARY DATE

38.01 Step advancement of actual service shall be frozen except that those employees with two (2) or more years at Step One will move to Step Two on their Anniversary Date. Those employees who are appointed at Step One will progress to the Step Two level after two years of active service have elapsed.

An employee who is promoted or reclassified to a higher level shall be placed at the step in the appropriate level that is closest to but not less than his or her former salary while ensuring that the salary increase is equivalent to at least 5.0%.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIV	ered this 21 day of July, 2015.
IN THE PRESENCE OF:	UNIVERSITY OF PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND Juliu Volge VICE-PRESIDENT ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE ASSOCIATE VICE-PRESIDENT HUMAN RESOURCES & LEGAL
IN THE PRESENCE OF:	LOCAL UNION NO. 1870, CANADIAN UNION OF PUBLIC EMPLOYEES
Kati Mousey	Jac Su Cannehael PRESIDENT Bans Camell

Appendix A

SALARY SCHEDULE

See Attached Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) dated October 1st, 2012 for wage settlement for Appendix "A" as well as pension settlement (pdf). This MOA shall form part of this Memorandum of Settlement.

A. Health Spending Account

Effective May 1, 2015, the amount of the Health Spending Account (HSA) shall be two hundred and fifty dollars (\$250.00) per year and shall be prorated to the actual time and term of the employee's appointment. For greater clarification, a half time employee shall receive one half (1/2) of the allocated amount'

B. Market Adjustment

- a) Primary Health Care Nurse 2 levels above scale
- b) Nursing Lab Instructor 2 levels above scale
- c) Biomedical Equipment Technologist 2 levels above scale

PRINCE EDWARD ISLAND LABOUR ACT

IN THE MATTER OF:

A tentative agreement between:

The Board of Governors for the University of Prince Edward Island

-and-

The Canadian Union of Public Employees, Local 1870

Whereas the Board and the Union are parties to a collective agreement which expired on April 30th, 2012;

Whereas the parties have reached a partial tentative agreement regarding a wage and pension settlement and term of agreement;

Whereas the parties agree to ratify this settlement in order to effect a coordinated payroll adjustment within the University;

Whereas the parties recognize that they will still be negotiating other items in the present round of collective bargaining, and that the Labour Act will apply thereto;

Subject to ratification of this Memorandum the parties agree as follows:

- 1. That the wage schedule of the Collective Agreement set out in Schedule "A" hereto is amended as agreed to by the parties.
- 2. That article 37, Term of Agreement is amended to read May 1, 2012 to April 30, 2016.
- 3. That all remaining articles in the Collective Agreement shall remain unchanged until amended during the ordinary course of negotiations presently underway.
- 4. That notwithstanding Article 37, the wage adjustments for 2012 will be made effective November 1, 2012. The new salary adjustments for all Members shall be reflected in the

pay of November 9, 2012. A COLA adjustment has been provided in the final year of the agreement, stipulating that if CPI for Prince Edward Island (PEI) averages over 2.25% for the period May 1, 2013 to April 30, 2015, then an additional adjustment, equivalent to the difference between 2.25% and the average CPI for PEI between May 1, 2013 to April 30, 2015, will be applied up to a maximum of 0.65%. For clarity, the wage adjustment applied on May 1st, 2015 shall not be lower than 2.25% and, with any COLA adjustment that may apply as above, shall not be higher than 2.90%

- 5. That the Parties acknowledge that effective November 1, 2012 employees pension contributions will increase by 2.91%.
- That, with the exception of the wage adjustments agreed to herein, until the ratification of a new Collective Agreement the remainder of the 2010-2012 Agreement shall remain in effect.
- That the CUPE Local 1870 Executive will recommend to their Membership approval of the tentative agreement during the ratification process. The Union shall arrange a ratification vote no later than October 5th, 2012.
- That the Board Team will recommend to the Board of Governors approval of the tentative agreement during the ratification process. The Board of Governors shall arrange a ratification vote no later than October 5th, 2012.
- 9. That the remainder of the collective agreement shall be subject to the normal negotiation process with all of the usual parameters associated with the bargaining. The relevant provisions of the Labour Act will continue to apply as if this Memorandum did not exist.

Dated this 1st day of October, 2012.

CUPE Local 1870

					1,761.75	1,957.50		1,761,75	1,957.50	2,088.00		1,761,75	1,957.50		1,761.75	1,957.50		1,761.75	1,957,50		1,761.75	1,957.50		1,761.75	1,957.50		1,761.75	1,957.50		1,761.75	1,957.50		1,761,75	1,957.50		1,761.75	1,957.50
1st, 2015	3 35%	10°	Step 2	15.85	\$27,924	\$31,026	18.18	\$32,029	\$35,587	\$37,960	21.40	\$37,701	\$41,891	22.65	\$39,904	\$44,337	26.11	\$45,999	\$51,110	28.29	\$49,840	\$55,378	29.87	\$52,623	\$58,471	32.32	\$56,940	\$63,266	35.62	\$62,754	\$69,726	37.88	\$66,735	\$74,150	4216	\$74,275	\$82,528
Effective May 1st, 2015	2.25%	\$10°	Step 1	14.72	\$25,933	\$28,814	16.54	\$29,139	\$32,377	\$34,536	19,47	\$34,301	\$38,113	20.59	\$36,274	\$40,305	23.73	\$41,806	\$46,451	25.72	\$45,312	\$50,347	27.17	\$47,867	\$53,185	29,39	\$51,778	\$57,531	32.38	\$57,045	\$63,384	34.43	\$60,657	\$67,397	38.32	\$67,510	\$75,011
1st, 2014	1 7597		Step 2	15.50	\$27,307	\$30,341	17.78	\$31,324	\$34,804	\$37,125	20.93	\$36,873	\$40,970	22.15	\$39,023	\$43,359	25.54	\$44,995	\$49,995	79'12	\$48,748	\$54,164	28.21	\$51,461	\$57,179	31.61	\$55,689	561,877	34.84	\$61,379	\$68,199	37.05	\$65,273	\$72,525	41.23	\$72,637	\$80,708
Effective May 1st, 2014 Wage Adjustment	1 75%		Step 1	14,40	\$25,369	\$28,188	16.18	\$28,505	\$31,672	\$33,784	19.04	\$33,544	\$37,271	20.14	\$35,482	\$39,424	23.21	\$40,890	\$45,434	25.25	\$44,308	\$49,231	26.57	\$46,810	\$52,011	28.74	\$50,633	\$56,259	31.67	\$55,795	\$61,994	33.67	\$59,318	\$65,909	37,48	\$66,030	\$73,367
Lst, 2013 trnent	1 75%		Step 2	15.23	\$26,831	\$29,813	17.47	\$30,778	\$34,198	\$36,477	20.57	\$36,239	\$40,266	21.77	\$38,353	\$42,615	25.10	\$44,220	\$49,133	27.19	\$47,902	\$53,224	28.71	\$50,580	\$56,200	31.07	\$54,738	\$60,820	34.24	\$60,322	\$67,025	36.41	\$64,145	\$71,273	40.52	\$71,386	875,318
Effective May 1st, 2013 Wage Adjustment	175%		Step 1	14,15	\$24,929	\$27,699	15.90	\$28,012	\$31,124	\$33,199	18.71	\$32,962	\$36,625	19.79	\$34,865	\$38,739	22.81	\$40,186	\$44,651	24.72	\$43,550	\$48,389	26.11	\$45,999	\$51,110	28.25	\$49,769	\$55,299	37.13	\$54,843	\$60,937	33.09	\$58,296	\$64,774	36.84	\$64,903	\$72,114
ber 1st, 2012 stment	1 50%		Step 2	14,97	\$26,373	\$29,304	17.17	\$30,249	\$33,610	\$35,851	20.22	\$35,623	\$39,581	21.40	\$37,701	\$41,891	24.67	\$43,462	\$48.292	26.72	\$47,074	\$52,304	28.22	\$49,717	\$55,241	30.54	\$53,804	\$59,782	33.65	\$59,283	\$65,870	35.78	\$63,035	\$70,039	39.82	\$70,153	877,948
Effective November 1st, 2012 Wage Adjustment	1.50%		Step 1	13.91	\$24,506	\$27,729	15.63	\$27,536	\$30,596	\$32,635	18.39	\$32,399	\$35,998	19.45	\$34,266	\$38,073	22-72	\$39,498	\$43,887	24.29	\$42,793			\$45,207	į	27.76	\$48,906	\$54,340	30.59	\$53,892	\$55,880	32.52	\$57,292	\$63,658	36.21	\$63,793	\$70,881
nber 1st, 2012 Justment	3.00%		Step 2	14.75	\$25,986	\$28,873	16.92	\$29,809	\$33,121	\$35,329	19.92	\$35,094	\$38,993	21.08	\$37,138	\$41,264	24.31	\$42,828	\$47,587	26.33	\$46,387	\$51,541	27.80	\$48,977	\$54,419	. 30.09	\$53,011	\$58,901	33,15	\$58,402	\$64,891	35.25	\$62,102	\$69,002	39.23	\$69,113	\$76,793
Effective November 1st, 2012 Pension Adjustment	3.00%		Step 1	13.70	\$24,136	\$26,818	15.40	\$27,131	\$30,146	\$32,155	18.12	\$31,923	\$35,470	19.16	\$33,755	\$37,506	22.09	\$38,917	\$43,241	23.93	\$42,159	\$46,843	25.28	\$44,537	\$49,486	27.35	\$48,184	\$53,538	30.14	\$53,099	\$58,999	32.04	\$56,446	\$62,718	35.67	\$62,842	\$69,824
30th, 2012			Step 2	3 14.32	5 25,133	3 27,926	5 16.43	5 28,960	32,166	5 34,188	5 19.34	34,095	\$ 37,869	\$ 20.47	\$ 36,069	\$ 40,060	\$ 23.60	\$ 41,586	\$ 46,187	\$ 25.56	\$ 45,023	\$ 50,007	\$ 26.99	\$ 47,568	\$ 52,834	ង្គ	\$ 51,472	\$ 57,170	\$ 32.18	\$ 56,713	\$ 62,990	\$ 34.22	\$ 60,300	\$ 65,971	\$ 38.09	\$ 67,109	2 74,536
Effective April 30th, 2012			Step 1	13.30 \$	23,343 \$	25,937	14.95	26,331	29,244	31,082	17.59	30,997	34,428	18.60	. 32,780	36,408	21.45	37,810	41,993	23.23	40,928	45,457	24.54	43,240	48,027	26.55	46,763	51,938	29.26	51,558	57,263	31.11	54,803	898'09	34.63	61,020	67,773
				1 ** \$	33.75 \$	37.50 \$	2	33.75 \$	37.50 \$	40.00	~	33.75 \$	37.50 \$	4	33.75 \$	37.50 \$	S	33.75	37.50 \$	9	33.75	37.50 \$	7	33.75 \$	37.50 \$	*	33.75	37.50 \$	ъ Ф	33.75	37.50 \$	10	33.75 \$	37.50 \$	11	33.75	37.50 \$

* A COLA adjustment has been provided in the final year of the agreement, stipulating that if CPI for PEI averages over 2.25% for the period 01May13 to 30Apr15, then an additional adjustment, equivalent to the difference between 2.25% and the average CPI for PEI between 01May13 and 30Apr15, will be applied up to a maximum of 0.65%. For darity, the wage adjustment applied on May 1.5t, 201.5 shall not be lower than 2.25% and, with any COLA adjustment that may apply as above, shall not be higher than 2.90%.

Appendix B

RED CIRCLED EMPLOYEES

Application of Appendix A Salary Schedule for employees who were "red circled" as a result of the Classification Study.

Red circled "refers to those whose assigned pay rate was less than the employers = rate of pay at April 30, 2001, and whose pay rate remained frozen until their assigned pay rate exceeded their April 30, 2001 pay rate."

"Red Circled" Employees at April 30, 2001

(i) Will receive, for each year they remained red circled:

May 1, 2001 - 3 vacation days

May 1, 2002 - 3 vacation days

May 1, 2003 - 6 vacation days

May 1, 2004 - 4 vacation days

Maximum 16 vacation days

- Applicable to all employees who were red circled by the Classification Study and who are still actively employed at UPEI in the bargaining unit at the date of ratification.
- Applies to each and every year in which the employee was red circled. Does not apply once the employee was promoted to a higher rate of pay in a different position, or was reclassified to a higher rate of pay than the rate at the time of being red circled. (For example, a red circled employee reclassified to a higher rate of pay January 1, 2003 will not receive 6 days for 2003. An employee reclassified to a higher rate of pay July 1, 2003 will receive 6 vacation days for 2003)
- These vacation days will be tracked separately and will not be factored into the amount of carry-over allowed in the Collective Agreement.
- Affected employees will have the option to take the days as a lump sum cash payment in lieu of vacation, at the current rate applicable on the date when the employee seeks the pay out.
- (ii) Employees who remained red circled after the pay adjustment of May 1, 2003 shall receive:
 - an additional ongoing HSA amount of one hundred dollars (\$100).
- (iii) Employees who remained red circled on or after April 30, 2004 shall receive: 2.0% lump-sum plus \$700 lump sum.
- (iv) Employees who remained red circled after the pay adjustment of May 1, 2004 shall receive:
 - an additional ongoing HSA amount of two hundred dollars (\$200).

- (v) Employees who remained red circled on April 30, 2005 shall on May 1, 2005:
 - receive the applicable HSA
 - be grand-parented and will receive negotiated HSA and increases applied to their base salaries for as long as they remain in the same position

For clarity:

Red-circled employees will have an on-going total HSA amount of \$300 or \$400 depending on whether they were still red-circled on May 1, 2003 and no longer red-circled on May 1, 2004, or whether they remained red-circled on May 1, 2004 respectively. The May 1, 2006 HSA adjustment of five dollars (\$5.00) will also apply to the above amounts.

Appendix C

University of Prince Edward Island Policy on Aids

Note: This policy is included as an appendix, for information purposes.

AIDS-Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome - is a challenge to society and of grave concern to the University community. Although modes of transmission of the Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) are well understood and the local incidence of HIV infection is relatively low, it continues to be a serious public health issue because of an ever increasing mortality rate, and the lack of an effective cure or vaccine.

UPEI's response to AIDS will be guided by the University's traditional commitment to the preservation of individual rights and freedoms and by an informed regard for public health. Further, as an institution of higher learning UPEI accepts its responsibility to set an example in providing effective and up-to-date public education concerning HIV infection. Such education includes information about the transmission of HIV, care for those who may be infected, respect for their rights, and support to friends, families, co-workers and fellow students.

Public health experts indicate that persons with AIDS and persons who test HIV-positive do not pose a health risk to others while carrying out their regular activities as students or employees. Available evidence strongly indicates that HIV is transmitted by intimate, sexual contact or by injection of contaminated blood. The overwhelming consensus of authoritative medical opinion is that HIV is not readily communicable and that it does not spread through casual contact.

In light of these medical facts as known at present, the University supports the individual's right to absolute confidentiality, subject to any limitations that may be placed upon this right by law, and normal requirements regarding employee benefits. Consequently the University is opposed in principle and practice to mandatory screening and testing for HIV infection.

Faculty, staff or students who are known to be HIV-positive will not be restricted in their employment or attendance at the University. There will be no barriers to study, teaching, research and other work opportunities, or to the use of recreational, sporting, residential or other communal facilities and services, subject to the following condition.

With regard to safety, first-aid and emergency practices, and to the care of patients with infectious diseases, the University conforms to federal government guidelines regarding control of infectious diseases.

At the present time the most effective means to prevent the spread of HIV is health education, and UPEI will promote an active, campus-wide program of education concerning HIV infection. Furthermore, the University will continue to review and revise its health education programs and relevant administrative guidelines and policies as new information about AIDS becomes available.

* * * * * *

The above statements represent UPEI's official policy concerning HIV infection. All members of the University community are encouraged to respect the principles on which the policy is based in every aspect of their personal and professional conduct.*

* In formulating this policy, UPEI has made extensive use of the policy developed, and recently adopted, by Dalhousie University. That debt of gratitude is respectfully acknowledged.

October 1989

Appendix D

Exclusions

POSITION TITLE

DEPARTMENT

Administrative Assistant to the Comptroller Administrative Assistant to the Vice President

Administrative Assistant to the Director Administrative Assistant to the Vice President

Assistant to the Board of Governors

Administrative Assistant

Administrative Assistant to the President Administrative Assistant to the Vice President **Comptroller's Office**

Vice President Administration &

Finance

Human Resources

Vice President Academic Board of Governors President's Office President's Office

Research & Development

Appendix E

REPLACEMENT AND TEMPORARY (TERM) EMPLOYEES

The parties agree that the provisions of the current Collective Agreement, and which includes this Appendix "E", shall apply to replacement and temporary employees to the extent and in the manner, as outlined following:

Purpose of Agreement:

ARTICLE 14 Applies as written.

Purpose of Agreement:						
	Applies as written.					
<u>Definitions:</u>	Applies as written.					
ARTICLE 1	Applies as written.					
ARTICLE 2	Applies as written.					
ARTICLE 3	Applies as written.					
ARTICLE 4	Applies as written.					
ARTICLE 5	Applies as written.					
ARTICLE 6	Applies as written.					
ARTICLE 7	Applies as written.					
ARTICLE 8	Applies as written except as follows:					
8.15	Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 8, employees covered by the terms of this Appendix shall only have access to the grievance and arbitration provisions of the Collective Agreement for those terms and conditions of employment defined as applicable to them by this Appendix "E".					
ARTICLE 9	Applies as written.					
ARTICLE 10	Applies as written.					
ARTICLE 11	Applies as written except that Article 11.06 does not apply to casual employees.					
ARTICLE 12	Applies as written except for Article 12.08 which is excluded.					
ARTICLE 13	Applies as written.					

ARTICLE 15 Applies as written.

ARTICLE 16 Applies as written.

ARTICLE 17 Replacement or temporary employees shall be entitled to vacation pay, or time off, with pay as determined by the employing department at the rate of four percent (4%) of earnings for the first year of continuous employment and, thereafter, in accordance with Article 17 of the Collective Agreement. Casual employees are excluded from this application; they are entitled to 4% vacation pay.

ARTICLE 18 Replacement or temporary employees may be granted sick leave at the discretion of the employing department for the first year of continuous service and, thereafter, will be eligible for sick leave in accordance with Article 18 of the Collective Agreement. For clarity, Casual employees are excluded from this application.

ARTICLE 19

- 19.01 All to apply to replacement or temporary employees after the completion of one year of continuous service.
- 19.02 All to apply to replacement or temporary employees after the completion of one year of continuous service.
- 19.03 Applies as written.
- 19.04 Applies as written.
- 19.05 Applies as written.
- 19.06 Applies as written.

19.07 and 19.08

Both 19:07, Education Leave, and 19:08, Jury Duty, to apply to replacement and temporary employees after one year of continuous service.

- 19.09 Applies as written.
- 19.10 Applies as written.
- 19.11 To apply to replacement and temporary employees after one year of continuous service.
- 19.12 Applies as written.
- 19.13 Applies as written.
- 19.14 Does not apply.
- 19.15 Does not apply.

ARTICLE 20

ARTICLES 20.01 through 20.09 AS WRITTEN

20.10 Notwithstanding the foregoing reference to Articles 20.01 through 20.09 as applying to replacement and temporary employees, temporary and replacement employees shall not be credited with accumulation of seniority until the completion of one year of continuous service as defined as follows:

"continuous service" as used in this Appendix "E" above, means uninterrupted service with the University, on an active and actual basis, as a paid employee of the University; which has not been broken by resignation or termination; provided, however, that the following shall not be considered as interruptions of service:

- (1) periods during which an employee is receiving Worker=s Compensation benefits for illness or injury suffered through University employment,
- (2) duly authorized leaves of absence, including vacations, statutory holidays, etc....,
- (3) on layoff for thirty (30) days or less,
- (4) sick leave for which sick leave benefits are paid or where the absence is one week or less.

When the term employment, for which casual, temporary, grant, and replacement employees have been hired, has been completed and the employee is subject to layoff, the casual, temporary, grant or replacement employee shall not be entitled to exercise any accumulated seniority to displace another employee.

ARTICLE 21

- 21.01 Applies as written.
- 21.02 Does not apply.
- 21.03 Does not apply.
- 21.04 A temporary/term employee who has seniority rights in accordance with 20.09 and <u>Appendix</u> "E" <u>Article 20.10</u> can exercise recall rights into a temporary/term appointment.
- 21.05 Does not apply.
- 21.06 A <u>temporary</u>/term employee who is on layoff shall be, if qualified, appointed without competition to a vacant temporary/term position in their former classification and level, provided their hours of work are equivalent, in accordance with Article 21.09. Notwithstanding Article 23 this vacant position shall not be posted.
- 21.07 Does not apply.

- 21.08 Applies as written.
- 21.09 Does not apply except to clarify the hours of work as laid out in Appendix "E" Article 21.06.
- 21.10 Applies as written.
- 21.11 Does not apply.
- 21.12 Applies as written in Appendix "E" Article 21
- 21.13 Applies as written.
- 21.14 Applies as written.
- 21.15 Subject to Article 21.22, a replacement, grant or temporary/term employee on lay-off shall retain any seniority rights earned pursuant to Appendix E Article 20.10, to the date of lay-off, and shall have right of recall:
 - a) For a minimum of three (3) months from the date of lay-off; or
 - b) Thereafter, to the amount of seniority accumulated to a maximum of five (5) years from the date of the lay-off.

For further clarity, employees on lay-off by virtue of having their hours of work reduced, but who remain employed with the University on an on-going basis, shall continue to accumulate seniority based on their hours worked. However, these employees will be subject to the loss of the right to recall after five (5) years from the date of lay-off in the event that they have not exercised that right.

- 21.16 Applies as written.
- 21.17 Recall rights shall exist for the periods described in Article 21.15, above, for the period that is pertinent to the individual employee's situation.
- 21.18 Applies as written.
- 21.19 Applies as written.
- 21.20 Applies as written.
- 21.21 Applies as written.
- 21.22 Applies as written.
- 21.23 Does not apply.

ARTICLE 22 Does not apply.

ARTICLE 23

- 23.01 Applies as written
- 23.03 Replacement grant, and temporary employees shall be given preferential consideration for vacant permanent positions within the bargaining unit if no permanent employee has been appointed to the position, after the completion of one year of continuous service, or equivalent.
- 23.06 Not to apply to replacement or temporary employees.
- 23.09 Replacement and temporary employees would not have access to the reclassification procedure until after the completion of one year continuous service.
- ARTICLE 24 Replacement and temporary employees may be enrolled in insurance benefit plans for which they are eligible, at the discretion of the employing department until the completion of one year of continuous service, after which the provision of Article 24 shall apply.

Grant employees shall only be enrolled in such Health and Insurance Plans for which they are eligible and for which funding is available.

For clarity, Casual employees are excluded from this application.

ARTICLE 25 Applies as written.

ARTICLE 26

26.05 Replacement and temporary employees shall be eligible to participate in the University programs listed in clause 26:04, except that (a) tuition fees waiver would not apply until after the completion of one year of continuous service.

ARTICLE 27 Applies as written.

ARTICLE 28 Applies as written.

ARTICLE 29 Applies as written.

ARTICLE 30 Applies as written.

ARTICLE 31 Applies as written.

ARTICLE 32 Applies as written.

ARTICLE 33 The provisions of the *PEI Employment Standards Act* relative to Maternity and Parental leave shall apply to replacement and temporary employees until the completion of one year of continuous service, after which the provisions of Article 33 shall apply.

ARTICLE 34 Applies as written.

ARTICLE 35

- 35.01 (a) Applies as written.
- 35.01 (b) Applies if the employee is eligible for and is accruing sick leave per Article 18
- 35.02 The provisions of clause 35:02 of the Collective Agreement would only apply for the listed term of employment for replacement or temporary employees.
- ARTICLE 36 Article 36 of the Collective Agreement will not apply to replacement, grant, or temporary employees.
- ARTICLE 37 Applies as written.
- ARTICLE 38 Applies as written.

APPENDIX A Applies as written.

Notwithstanding the foregoing wage schedule, the salary for temporary or grant positions shall be that established by the amount of the funding and not, necessarily, that contained in the wage schedule; provided, however, that any deviation in salary from the salary listed for the classification shall be discussed with the Union and reviewed annually.

APPENDIX B Applies as written.

APPENDIX C Applies as written.

<u>APPENDIX F</u> Applies as written but subject to the conditions in Appendix "A" wording above.

Appendix F

CUPE 1870 CLASSIFICATION AND SALARY RANGE SCHEDULE

CUPE 1870 CLASSIFICATION AND SALARY RANGE SCHEDULE *							
Level	Points From	Points To					
11	320	349					
10	290	319					
9	260	289					
8	235	259					
7	210	234					
6	185	209					
5	160	184					
4	140	159					
3	120	139					
2	100	119					
1	80	99					

* for MTS, P/A and ADS

Consolidation of Titles and Classifications									
P/A - (Programmer Analyst)	ADS - (Administrative Support)								
III II A II I A I I I A I	Registrar=s Office Supervisor ADI SY5 CL V SY4 CL IV Shipping/Receiving Clerk SY3 CL III Medical Records Clerk SY2 CL II Postal Clerk Porter								
	P/A - (Programmer Analyst) III II A II								

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Between:

The University of Prince Edward Island (the "University")

and

The Canadian Union of Public Employees - Local 1870 (the "Union")

(Hereinafter called the "Parties")

WHEREAS the University and the Union are party to a collective agreement dated July 4, 2012 (the "Collective Agreement");

AND WHEREAS a practice has developed of allowing employees to accrue overtime credits and vacation leave credits in excess of the allowable amounts under the Collective Agreement;

AND WHEREAS the University has delivered notice to the Union that it intends to end the practice and revert to the wording set out in the Collective Agreement;

AND WHEREAS the University and the Union wish to jointly identify the manner in which existing overtime and vacation entitlement will be addressed.

AND WHEREAS the intent is that all Employee overtime and vacation in excess of the entitlements permitted in the Collective Agreement shall be reduced to the vacation entitlement set out in Article 17.01(9) of the Collective Agreement.

Therefore, the Parties hereto agree as follows.

OVERTIME (ARTICLE 11)

1. By mutual consent of the University and an Employee, accumulated overtime may be maintained as time in lieu to a maximum of fifteen (15) working days to the extent that such time in lieu does not bring the Employee over the maximum vacation credit entitlement set out in Article 17.01(9) of the Collective Agreement. For clarity, this does not mean that an employee will not be permitted to accumulate more time in lieu above the fifteen (15) day maximum but that no more than a maximum of fifteen (15) days may be used for vacation in Article 17.01(9). No later than June 30, 2015 the Employee and the Supervisor will finalize and agree to the amount of time in lieu that an employee may be permitted to maintain for the purpose of remaining within the two year maximum entitlement in Article 17.01(9).

- For the purpose of establishing a clear starting point moving forward any accumulated overtime not maintained as time in lieu for the purpose of Article 17.01(9), in accordance with #1 above, shall be paid out to the Employee in July 2015 in a onetime lump sum.
- 3. Notwithstanding paragraphs 1 and 2 above any remaining time in lieu must be used by no later than April 30, 2016, otherwise it will be paid out in a onetime lump sum.

VACATION (ARTICLE 17)

- 4. All Employees over the maximum vacation entitlement set out in Article 17.01(9) must have finalized and agreed with their Supervisor, both parties acting reasonably, a vacation action plan by no later than June 30, 2015. The vacation action plan must set out specific action to bring accumulation under the maximum vacation entitlement set out in Article 17.01(9) by no later than April 30, 2016.
- 5. If a vacation action plan is not agreed between the Employee and the Supervisor by June 30, 2015, both parties acting reasonably, any vacation credits above the maximum vacation entitlement set out in Article 17.01(9) will be paid out in a onetime lump sum.

GENERAL

6. Effective signing of this Memorandum of Understanding, the University, the Union and Employees shall abide by the provisions of the Collective Agreement in respect of Vacations and Overtime.

Dated at Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island, this 21 day of July , 2015

On behalf of the University

On behalf of the Union

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

BETWEEN: The University of Prince Edward Island

And

The Canadian Union of Public Employees - Local 1870
The Canadian Union of Public Employees - Local 501
The International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers - Local 1432

(Hereinafter called the "Parties")

Whereas the University of Prince Edward Island and the Canadian Union of Public Employees Local 1870 entered into a Memorandum of Agreement Re: Article 23 - Group Insurance as part of the negotiated settlement for a collective agreement dated July 10, 2000; AND

Whereas the University of Prince Edward Island and the Canadian Union of Public Employees Local 501 entered into a Memorandum of Agreement Re: Article 26 - Insurance as part of the negotiated settlement for a collective agreement dated July 10, 2000; AND

Whereas the University of Prince Edward Island and the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 1432 entered into a Letter of Understanding Re: Article 22 - Insurance as part of the negotiated settlement for a collective agreement dated June 26, 2000; AND

Whereas the Parties to each Memorandum of Agreement and the Letter of Understanding noted above have participated in the Joint Working Committee on Supplementary Health Care Insurance and have reached an agreement on the cost sharing of premiums for the Supplementary Health Care Plan.

Therefore, the Parties agree that:

- 1. The Parties to each Memorandum of Agreement noted above have reached an agreement to establish a Trustee arrangement for the purpose of jointly administering the Supplementary Health Care Plan.
- 2. The Parties to the Letter of Understanding noted above have agreed that the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 1432 will not participate as a voting member of the Trustees but will hold observer status at Trustee meetings.
- 3. The Employer will arrange for the preparation of a draft Trust Agreement for consideration by the Parties.

The Trust Agreement shall include provisions for, but not be limited to, the following:

Introduction

Definitions

General Interpretation

Purpose of the Trust Fund

Trustees

General Authority of Trustees

- a) Duty to Report on The Affairs of the Trustees
- a) Procedures, By-Laws and Regulations
- b) Construction of Agreements

Commencement and Collection of Contributions

- Contributions
- Commencement of Coverage
- Collection of Contributions
- Benefit Credit Accounts

Record Keeping and Signing of Documents

- Execution of Documents
- Form of Execution

Meetings of Trustees

Minutes

Expenses of Trustees

Deposit, Withdrawal and Co-Mingling of Funds

Bonding and Insurance

Consultation on the Removal of the Actuary, Administrator, Investment Manager and Consultant

- Actuary
- Administrator
- Investment Manager
- Consultant

Education and Training of Trustees

Amendment to the Trust Agreement, including the expansion of the mandate

Amendment to Plan(s)

Termination of Participation by the Parties

Termination of This Agreement

General Provisions

Notice

Execution Date

- 4. The Trust Agreement will be available for review for ratification by the Parties within 90 days of signing this Memorandum of Agreement with an objective to have the Trust Agreement finalized by September 30, 2001, with an effective date of April 1, 2002.
- 5. Once it is in effect, the Trusteeship Agreement will take precedence over this Memorandum of Agreement.

- 6. The Canadian Union of Public Employees Locals 1870 and 501 agree to participate in a cost sharing of premiums in the Supplementary Health Care Insurance Plan based upon a 50 percent employee share and a 50 percent Employer share on the effective date.
- 7. The International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 1432 agree to participate in a cost sharing of premiums in the Supplementary Health Care Insurance Plan based upon a 25 percent employee share and a 75 percent Employer Share on the effective date.

8. Benefit Credits

- a) The Parties agree that the Employer's reimbursement to the employees will be based on a benefit credit approach thereby saving the income taxes that would otherwise be payable by the employee.
- b) The actual value of the benefit credit will be determined at the time of the effective date which shall be April 1, 2002.
- c) In accordance with the previously signed Memoranda and Letter of Understanding referred to above, the initial Benefit Credit will be the amount equivalent to the total value of the employees share of the cost sharing arrangement, and will be paid to each employee in the respective bargaining units who is a subscriber of the Supplemental Health Care Plan, split according to their single or family participation in the Supplementary Health Care Plan. This initial Benefit Credit will not apply to those part-time subscribers who are already sharing the premium on a 50/50 basis. Future benefit credits will be determined through the collective bargaining process.
- d) The initial benefit credits will be calculated as 50 percent of the health plan cost for single and family coverage in the Supplementary Health Care Insurance Plan for CUPE Local 1870 and CUPE Local 501 members.
- e) The initial benefit credits will equal 25 percent of the health plan cost for single and family coverage in the Supplementary Health Care Insurance Plan for IBEW Local 1432 members.
- f) On the effective date, benefit credits established through the initial process which are in excess of the value needed to pay for the employee's portion of the benefit costs will be eligible for deposit to a health spending account or can be taken as a cash payment.
- g) The exchange of benefit credits for cash is permitted under the Income Tax Act; however, the election is irrevocable and must be made before the beginning of the benefit plan year. The actual payment to the Benefit Credit Account will be made on a bi-weekly payroll basis. Health Spending Accounts may be drawn upon throughout the year to the extent that is in the account. Any payout of cash will be made as a lump sum at the end of each plan year.

- h) Each eligible employee in the respective bargaining units will have a Benefit Credit Account. In the event that two persons employed by the University are eligible to be enrolled together under family coverage in the Plan, both shall be credited with any amounts provided or negotiated on their behalf.
- i) Employees will make their election regarding the use of any excess benefit credit once a year, in February. For the first election, if a choice is not made, the default will be the lump sum cash payment. Thereafter, if an election is not made, the previous election will be deemed to be the choice for the upcoming Plan Year.
- j) For new hires or newly eligible employees entering the benefit plan during the year, such employees are able to make their selection of benefits and election of any excess benefit credits even though the plan year is in progress. The election will be in effect until March 31st, the end of the plan year.
- k) Upon termination, employees who have elected cash will be paid the amount accrued. Employees who have elected a Health Spending Account will have six months to submit receipts for expenses incurred prior to the date of termination.
- 1) Future benefit credits will be determined through the collective bargaining process.
- m) The Health Spending Account will be administered on a carry forward credit basis, meaning that the employee may only claim against receipts paid in that Plan Year.
- n) Any related administration fees charged by the carrier will be incorporated into the Health premium rates.

9. Plan Year

The Plan year will be the benefit premium year, commencing, April 1, 2002.

10. Health Spending Accounts

Benefit credits in excess of the employee cost determined by the cost sharing formula can be deposited to a Health Spending Account. The Health Spending Account can be used to pay for eligible expenses under income tax regulations that are not covered by the Supplementary Health Care Insurance Plan. An election made on how to use the excess credit amount applies only to the upcoming plan year. A new election is required for subsequent plan years. Once the election is made, it is irrevocable for that plan year.

Once the employee has elected a Health Spending Account, the amount will begin to accrue and any unused balance will be carried over for a second year. At the end of that time, any monies not used from the first year will be forfeited, in accordance with Revenue Canada Regulations.

11. Compliance

The Parties agree to comply to the Canada Customs and Revenue Agency bulletins describing the tax status of these approaches. The Parties also acknowledge the requirement for the continuation of the favourable tax status and that the consequences of the Canadian Customs and Revenue Agency removing the favourable tax status would adversely affect all participating members of the Plan.

On request, IBEW Local 1432 or any other bargaining unit, shall be admitted to full membership in the Trustee arrangement provided that the members of the bargaining unit seeking admission agree to a cost sharing of premiums in the Supplementary Health Care Insurance Plan based upon a 50 percent employee share and a 50 percent Employer share. IBEW would then receive an additional equivalent Benefit Credit to be implemented according to the same provisions as were applied the other unions.

- 12. On request, The Faculty Association shall be admitted to full membership in the Trustee arrangement provided that the members of The Faculty Association agree to a cost sharing of premiums in the Supplementary Health Care Insurance Plan based upon a 50 percent employee share and a 50 percent Employer share.
- 13. Any employee eligible for UPEI Supplementary Health Care Plan benefits may become a member of the Supplementary Health Care Plan under the same arrangements which are in place for the Trusteeship.
- 14. The Parties agree that retirees who derive their Health Benefits from the signatories to this Memorandum of Agreement will be subject to the terms of the Trustee managed Plan from the effective date of implementation, on a go forward basis. Those individuals who retired prior to the effective date shall continue to have the premium cost sharing arrangement of the Supplementary Health Care Insurance Plan that was in place for them at the time of their retirement date.
- 15. At the discretion of the Trustees, other parties such as the UPEI Retirees Association may attend Trustee meetings but will not be given Trustee status and will not vote on matters coming before the Trustees.
- 16. The Parties agree in principle to provide for the possibility of a future expansion of the mandate of the Trusteeship.
- 17. The Parties agree that the Employer will not amend the Supplementary Health Insurance Plan or alter the premium structure, up to the effective date of the Trust Agreement, except by the mutual consent of the parties. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any imposition of changes to plan design initiated by the insurance carrier which are beyond the control of the Employer may be implemented following consultations between the Employer and the Unions.

- 18. On the effective date, the Employer agrees to pay to each employee in the respective bargaining units (CUPE Locals 1870 and 501 and IBEW Local 1432) a lump sum payment of Two Hundred Dollars (\$200.00). This amount will be prorated for those employees who work less than full-time and such payment will be based on their full-time equivalency.
- 19. That the schedule leading to implementation shall be as follows:

September 30, 2001

October 31, 2001

November 2001-February, 2002

December 2001 - January 2002

February 2002 February 28, 2002

April 1, 2002

Finalize Trust Agreement

Appoint Trustees

Trustee in-service

Communication to plan members re. Benefit Credit

Account, election and options for surplus

Benefits Premium Renewals

Employees make elections

Effective date of implementation:

new payroll system

Benefit Credit Accounts

Trusteeship

cost sharing arrangements

new benefits premium rates

- 20. That the following sections of the collective agreements with each of the respective unions will be amended to conform with this Memorandum of Agreement, effective April 1, 2002, or upon the establishment and implementation of the Trusteeship, whichever occurs later.
 - 1. CUPE Local 1870 Article 23.01, 23.02 and 23.03 Amended as per Appendix I
 - 2. CUPE Local 501 Article 26.01, 26.02 and 26.03 Amended as per Appendix II
 - 3. IBEW Local 1432 Article 22.3

- Amended as per Appendix III

21. The Parties agree that this Joint Working Committee on Supplementary Health Care Insurance will continue to operate until such time as the Trusteeship is in place and that it may, by mutual consent, amend or alter the implementation schedule as required.

Dated at Charlottetown, this 12 day of _	Octobe2001.
On Behalf of the University Prince Edward Island	On Behalf of the Canadian Union of Public Employees Local 1870

On Behalf of the Canadian Union of Public Employees Local 501

,2001.

On Behalf of the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

April 13, 2006

Leo Cheverie, President CUPE local 1870

RE: INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Dear Mr. Cheverie,

The employer agrees to convene the CUPE local 1870 Labour-Management Committee within 90 days of the signing of the Collective Agreement, for the purpose of discussing the topic of Intellectual Property and its implications for members of the Bargaining Unit.

Sincerely,

Peggy Leahey, CHRP

Director, Human Resources

c.c. Gary Bradshaw, VP Finance & Facilities

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING Regarding Out-of-Scale Market Adjustments Employees in CUPE, local 1870 (the Union)

The University of Prince Edward Island (the Employer), in certain instances, needs to attract or retain qualified individuals for specific positions, where market conditions have placed these skills in high demand. It may therefore become necessary to compensate incumbents in these positions at a rate of pay that is higher than the rate of pay that has been established in the salary schedule of the Collective Agreement. Therefore, the Employer and the Union (the Parties) agree to negotiate an out-of-schedule rate for specific positions.

Procedures:

- .1 The Employer will identify the positions for which it intends to apply an out-of-scale rate.
- .2 The Employer will undertake a market survey to identify the rates of pay currently in place for similar jobs. The data examined will include such items as: relevant market surveys, salary structure, recruitment and retention experience, relevant industry organizational factors (such as size and type of organization, total compensation, whether unionized, etc.)
- .3 The Employer will provide the Union with the market survey information.
- .4 The Parties will negotiate and agree on an out-of-scale rate of pay for the job.
- .5 Employees subject to an out-of-scale rate will retain this rate as long as they continue to occupy the same position.
- .6 The rate of pay for new appointments to these specific positions will be subject to review/reconfirmation by the Parties, in a matter that does not unduly delay the recruitment and selection process.
- .7 In the event that the skills of the position are no longer considered in high demand, all future rates of pay will revert to the rate specified in the Collective Agreement, and any new appointee to the positions will receive that specified rate of pay.

LETTER OF UNDERSTANDING

Regarding Job Evaluation Weighting and Training

December 18th, 2007

Leo Cheverie, President CUPE local 1870

Dear Mr. Cheverie,

This is to confirm that the Employer will provide the Union's National/Regional Job Evaluation Specialist with any changes that may occur from time to time with respect to the weightings applied to the factors used in the job evaluation plan. This is conditional upon the Union's agreement that this information remain confidential and that it not be disclosed to the general membership nor to the union executive.

Sincerely,

Peggy Leahey, CHRP

Director, Human Resources

c.c. Gary Bradshaw, VP Finance & Facilities

LETTER OF AGREEMENT

Between

The University of Prince Edward Island
(The Employer)

and

Canadian Union of Public Employees Local 1870 (The Union)

- 1. Within 90 days of the signing of the collective agreement, the Employer and the Union will strike an ad hoc committee consisting of two (2) Union representatives and two (2) Employer representatives.
- 2. The committee shall examine the feasibility, the administration and other measures to address requests by the Union and its members to subsidize the income of members who have exhausted their sick and any authorized leaves and who must still remain off work.
- 3. The committee will report its findings along with any recommendations by one hundred and twenty (120) days from the date of its first meeting.

DATE: \\\(\lambda_{\inv}\)

On behalf of the Employer

On behalf of the Union

Memorandum of Agreement.

Between The University of Prince Edward Island (Hereinafter called the "University")

And

The Canadian Union of Public Employees (CUPE), Local 501
Canadian Union of Public Employees (CUPE), Local 1870
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW), Local 1432
University of Prince Edward Island Faculty Association (UPEIFA) Unit#2
University of Prince Edward Island Faculty Association (UPEIFA) Unit#1

(Jointly, Hereinafter called the "Parties")

Whereas the Unions desired to negotiate enhancements to the UPEI Pension Plan; AND

Whereas the Parties participated as a joint group and reached an agreement on changes to the UPEI Pension Plan,

Thérefore:

- The Parties have reached an agreement to the implementation of and participation in the changes to the UPEI Pension Plan as described below in this Memorandum of Agreement.
- 2. The University has clarified that the definition of "spouse" in Section 1.27 of the UPEI Pension Plan includes married and common-law relationships.
- 3. The University has clarified that "service" applies to regular full-time and regular parttime employees. It does not apply to term appointments (i.e., replacement, temporary, Sessional Instructor, casual).
- 4. The University has confirmed that UPEI Pension Plan Section 3.2 has been deleted in its entirety and Sections 3.3 and 3.4 have been rescinded, eliminating references to 30th birthday. These were replaced with a new Section 3.2 indicating that the effective date

- of becoming a Member of the Plan shall be coincident with commencement of employment.
- 5. The Parties agree to replace Section 3.6 of the Pension Plan with the following:

 A Member with two or more years of membership in the Plan who becomes employed on a less than full-time basis must continue to make contributions to the Plan in respect of his less than full-time earnings.
- 6. The Parties agree that the changes specified below shall apply to those individuals who are current Members of the UPEI Pension Plan on July 1, 2010, forward.
- 7. The Parties agree that employees who have ceased employment with the University prior to July 1, 2010 are not eligible for this Plan improvement.
- 8. With respect to the past service improvements, the Parties agree;
 - a) To implement a past service improvement so as to provide a full 2.0% of the best 3 year average salary times years of service, for the service period after December 31, 1989 and up to and including December 31, 1998, subject to approval by the Canada Revenue Agency.
 - b) For the period of January 1, 1999 to June 30, 2010 the benefits will continue to be calculated on an integrated basis. An "Integration Ratio," as defined via amendment to the Plan, will be determined for each Pension Plan Member as at July 1, 2010. The means of implementation of this change is subject to approval by the Canada Revenue Agency.
 - c) Commencing July 1, 2010, Plan Members will pay an additional 0.88% of payroll, to cover the estimated cost of the additional benefit, for each of the next 15 years. Commencing July 1, 2025, the contribution rates paid by Plan Members on both CPP earnings and non-CPP earnings will be reduced by this same amount.
- 9. With respect to future service improvements, the Parties agree to de-link the contributions from the benefit determination so that, effective July 1, 2010, benefits will be based on an accrual formula as follows:
 - a) 2% of the average of the Employee's best 3 years of annual pensionable salary up to the average YBE for the same 3 years; plus
 - b) 1.50% of the same average pensionable salary in excess of the same average YBE and up to the average YMPE for the same 3 years; plus
 - c) 2% of the same average pensionable salary in excess of the same average YMPE, the total multiplied by:
 - d) Pensionable service on or after July 1, 2010.

- 10. The Parties agree that, commencing July 5, 2010, the UPEI Pension Plan Member contribution rate will be 5.4% of pay on CPP earnings and 7.2% of pay on non-CPP earnings. These rates are inclusive of the amount referenced in 8 (c) above. Commencing July 1, 2025, the contribution rates paid by Plan Members on both CPP earnings and non-CPP earnings will be reduced by the amount referenced in 8(c) above.
- 11. The University will execute the necessary UPEI Pension Plan amendments to follow up.

Signed in Charlottetown, Prince Edward Island:

Date: 4 0000 2010	for CUPE, Local 1870 _	Les Chevin
	Witness	July
Date:	for CUPE, Local 501 _	Stand
	Witness	Steen Healer
Date:	for IBEW, Local 1432	Doubl Kay
	Witness	Sary MBrick
Date: 14 October 2010	for UPEIFA, Unit #2	Leele
	Witness .	Mayer

September, 2010 Memorandum of Agreement – UPEI Pension Plan

Date: 19 Ortoler 2010

for UPEIFA, Unit #1

Witness

Date: Nov. 19, 2010

for University of PEI

Witness

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

Between

The University of Prince Edward Island

(The Employer)

And

Canadian Union of Public Employees Local 1870

(The Union)

Notwithstanding the provisions of Appendix D, the Employer provided the Union with the following list of excluded positions together with the description for each position.

Human Resources Receptionist Payroll Clerk **Human Resources Human Resources Payroll Officer** Staffing Assistant **Human Resources** Human Resources **Benefits Assistant** President's Office Senate Assistant Residences

Residence Life Coordinator

The Union is not in agreement with the exclusions proposed by the Employer and therefore the Parties have agreed to establish an Ad Hoc Committee consisting of two representatives of CUPE Local 1870 and two representatives from the Employer to conduct a review of the positions to determine their eligibility for exclusion and to make a recommendation to the Parties.

The Ad Hoc Committee shall be established within 30 days of the signing of the Collective Agreement and will report to the Parties within one hundred and twenty (120) days from the date of its first meeting.